SUWANNEE VALLEY TRANSIT AUTHORITY
MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
SUWANNEE VALLEY TRANSIT AUTHORITY
1907 VOYLES ST, SW

LIVE QAK, FL 32064

TENTATIVE AGENDA FOR REGULAR SCHEDULED BOARD MEETING
MONDAY, NOVEMBER 14, 2022
6:00 P.M.

Invocation
Pledge to American Flag

ATTENTION:

» The Board may add additional items to this agenda.

o Affirmative action on any item includes authorization of Chairman’s, or designee’s,
signature on all associated documents.

e Speakers from the audience will be allowed three (3) minutes to speak on items listed
within this agenda following recognition by the Chairman and must speak from the
podium. Comments must be limited to items listed on the agenda and speakers may only
make one {1) trip to the podium regarding each item they wish to speak on.

¢ For general updates or questions regarding SVTA business contact the Administrator during
regular business hours {386) 362-5332,

APPROVAL OF MINUTES:

» August 8, 2022 Regular Meeting Page 1-4  Chairman Don Hale
CONSENT:

PROCLAMATIONS AND PRESENTATIONS:

TIME SPECIFIC ITEMS:

BOARD ITEMS:

BOARD ATTORNEY ITEMS:

ADMINISTRATOR’S COMMENTS AND INFORMATION:

STAFF REPORTS:

> Financial Update (Profit & Loss) Page 5- 10 Cinda Foster
» Check Write Page 11-14



SUWANNEE VALLEY TRANSIT AUTHORITY
MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
SUWANNEE VALLEY TRANSIT AUTHORITY
1907 VOYLES ST, SW

LIVE OAK, FL 32064

GENERAL INFORMATION:

Discuss with possible Board action and adoption:

» Policy Update Rules & Regulations #2015-022 Page 15-16 Chairman Don Hale
» Policy Update Title VI (FDOT Version 2) Page 17-77 Chairman Don Hale
» 2023/2024 5310 Grant Resolution #2022-04 Page 78 Chairman Don Hale
» 2023/2024 5311 Grant Resolution #2022-05 Page 79 Chairman Don Hale
> 2023/2024 5339 Grant Resolution #2022-06 Page 80 Chairman Don Hale
» 2023 Meeting Schedule Page 81 Chairman Don Hale
» Bid Opening for Information Technology Managed Services Chairman Don Hale
» Elect Chairman 2023 Calendar Year Chairman Don Hale
» Elect Vice-Chair 2023 Calendar Year Chairman Don Hale

Public Concerns and Comments:

{Filling out a Comment Card required, and forward to Chairman. Speakers from the audience will
be allowed three {3} minutes to speak following recognition by the Chairman and must speak from
the podium - one (1) trip to podium.)

Board Members Inhguiries, Requests and Comments:

Informational items: Larry Sessions
a. Complaints/Commendations NONE
b. Compensatory time spread sheet NONE

Upcoming meeting: January 9, 2023 at 6:00 P.M.

2023 Board Meeting Schedule
January 9, 2023
April 10, 2023
July 10, 2023
October 16, 2023



Page 1

August 8™, 2022

Suwannee Valley Transit Authority Conference Room
Live Oak, Florida

M!NUTES
of the
GOVERNING BOARD OF DIRECTORS

6:00 p.m.
OPENING AND INVOCATION:

The Governing Board of Directors of the Suwannee Valley Tran5|t Authority met on

the above date and time for a regular meetlng - ' \"\\__b
Chairperson Don Hale called the meetmg to order at, 6 00 p.m. and asked Secretary
Eric Musgrove to lead the invocation, followed by the Pledge of Alieglance to the Flag of the

United States of America.

ATTENDING: r;"*/

The foIIOng Board members were present w.Chairperson Don Hale and

Commrssroners Rocky Ford Tim Murphy, Robert Brown Josh Smith, and Travis Land.
Also present were Admmlstrator Larry Sessmns Board Attorney Hal A. Airth, Board

Secretary Er|c Musgrove Clnda Foster, and Richard Powell.

- L

s *.
,_x

APPROVAL OF MINUTES

The flrst ltem on the agenda was to approve the minutes of the May 9, 2022 Regular
Meeting. R

Commissioner Brown moved to approve the minutes of the May 9, 2022 Regular
Meeting as written. Commissioner Murphy seconded, and the motion carried

unanimously.



Page 2

August 8th, 2022

Suwannee Valley Transit Authority Conference Room
Live Oak, Florida

TIME SPECIFIC ITEMS:

The second item on the agenda was to hear the 2020/2021 Audit Report.

Mr. Richard Powell, Powell & Jones, CPA, discussed the report in some detail.

Administrator Sessions noted that the Florida Department of Transportation (FDOT)
was about a year behind in reimbursing entities, which was why SVTA only had four months’
worth of reserves instead of its usual, much higher, reser\(gs-._"-f

Mr. Powell continued his discussion of the SVTA ahdit. He gave SVTA a clean audit
with no reportable findings. . §

The SVTA Board thanked Mr. Powell antj his firm, as well as Administrator Sessions

and his staff, for their hard work.

ADMINISTRATOR’S COMMENTS AND INFORMA TION:

Administrator Sessions stated that relmbursement from FDOT was running far
behind. He then noted several mstances m WhICh a delay in State approval and funding had
led to an increased cost, sometimes a greatly‘mcre_ased cost, to the faxpayers.

Discussion enéUed on déléys in vehté’lze deiivery. '

Administrator Sessions noted that hé had just received notice of ridership
opportunltles in Hamilton County that woutd add twenty riders per day. He discussed other
potential opportunltles but added that he was not seeing the kind of success that he would
like to see With school rldershlp

Dlscussmn contlnued on ridership and that it was currently at about 3,000 rides per
month, but with the i |ncrease of twenty riders mentioned during the school week, it would

increase to apprommately 4 000 rides per month.

STAFF REPORTS:

The third item on the agenda was to hear a financial update.

Mrs. Foster noted that the financial update was in the Board’s agenda packet.



Page 3

August 8%, 2022

Suwannee Valley Transit Authority Conference Room
Live Qak, Florida

The Board noted the drastically increased cost of fuel over the previous year, even

with the reduced use of diesel vehicles.

GENERAL BUSINESS:

The fourth item on the agenda was to discuss, with possible Board action and

adoption, the following items:

A) 2021/2022 Budget Amendments '

Administrator Sessions stated that the a»n_jeﬁc)i_ménts were to lower the amount of
revenues and expenses due to a reduction ‘in f‘u’r‘i-ding from FDOT -and the Transportation
Disadvantaged (TD) Board. ' ‘-

Discussion ensued on various revenue sources and that SVTA was still awaiting
approximately $1.4 million in relmbursements from FDOT

Commissioner Land moved to apprpye the 2021/2022 Budget Amendments.

Commissioner Ford seconded, and the motion carried unanimously.

GENERAL BUSINESS:

.’_\‘

The fifth item on the agenda was public concerns and comments. (Filling out a

Com ment Card reqmred and forwa rded to the Chalrperson Speakers from the audience will
be aIIowed three (3) mmutes to speak foIIowmg recognition by the Chairperson and must
speak from the podlum one (1) trlp to the podium).

There Were none.

The sixth item on the agenda was Board Members’ inguiries, requests, and
comments. ' »

There were none.

INFORMATIONAL ITEMS:

Administrator Sessions noted that he was now having an issue with a large number

of former prisoners wanting to ride SVTA buses, as he was not comfortable with having a



Page 4

August 8, 2022

Suwannee Valley Transit Authority Conference Room
Live Qak, Florida

busload of children riding with those convicted of crimes against children. He believed that
someone on the State level was giving the former prisoners the contact information of SVTA
to find a ride.

Some discussion ensued on how to keep children safe from predators, even those
released from prison, and of the possibility of adding information on application forms that
would alert SVTA to dangerous criminals.

Administrator Sessions noted a drug-free workplace policy that had been updated
with the name of the Medical Director for the servicé.r " _

Chairman Hale noted that the next mee't}ng was on Noverhber 14" at 6 p.m.

z

ADIOURNMENT:

Commissicner Ford moved to adjourn the meeting. Commissioner Land seconded,
and the motion carried unanimously, {

There being no further business to discuss, the meeting adjourned at 6:48 p.m.

Approved and adopted the __- ' day of . , 2022
Eric Musgrove - L Don Hale
Secretary to the Board N Chair, Board of Directors



Suwannee Valley Transit Authority

Profit & LLoss

August through October 2022

. Aug - Oct 22
Ordinary Income/Expense
Income
0280005 + SVTA Farebox 30,237.68
0582060 - Developmental Services 8,024.76
0683050 - Bank Interest 81.32
0984080 - Local Government Participation 14,676.50
1184201 - Motor Fuel Tax Refund 6,058.51
1285000 - 5311 - Operating 251,315.81
1385015 - 5310 - Capital 89,600.40
1485045 - Shirley Conroy Grant - Capital 91,482.00
1685000 - Commuter Asstistance Grant 6,360.31
1780140 - Operational Donations 3,214.50
2884105 - Ryan White - Well Florida 228.26
3080000 - Voc Rehab - Lake City 1,785.73
3182020 - SREC Meals 2,083.33
3484202 - Paypal Convenience Fee Revenue 20.00
83080 - TD Commission-Operating 98,702.50
Total Income 603,941.61
Gross Profit 603,941.81
Expense
Administration Expenses
95010 - Administration Wages 39,426.52
95025 - Admin Fringes
95020 + Admin FICA 2,333.10
95030 - Admin Retirement
0795030 - Admin Retirement - TD 4,057.52
1225030 - Admin Retirement - 5311 4,057.52
Total 95030 - Admin Retirement 8,116.04
95040 - Admin Group Insurance
0795040 - Admin Group Ins - TD 4,174.38
1295040 - Admin Group Ins - 5311 2,800.58
Total 95040 - Admin Group Insurance 6,983.96
95070 - Admin Medicare 545.65
Total 95025 - Admin Fringes 17,977.75
Total Administration Expenses 57,404.27
Operaiion Expenses
Operations FICA 3,633.27
Operations Medicare 831.14
66000 - Payroll Expenses
66010 - Payroll Fees 1,953.04
Total 66000 - Payroll Expenses 1,953.04
90010 - Operations Wages 62,406.59

Page 1 of 6



Suwannee Valley Transit Authority

Profit & Loss

August through October 2022

80011 - Operation Fringes
90030 - Operations Retirement

0790030 - Operations Retirement - TD
1290030 - Operations Retirement - 5311

Total 30030 - Operations Retirement

90040 - Operations Group Insurance

0790040 - Operations Group Ins - TD
1290040 - Operations Group Ins - 5311

Total 80040 - Operations Group Insurance

Total 50011 - Operation Fringes
95500 - ADS & Subs & Dues
85501 « Advertising Expense
Ads & Subscriptions - 5311

0795501 - Ads & Subscriptions - TD

Total 95501 - Advertising Expense
95503 - Dues
0795503 - Dues - TD
Total 95503 - Dues
Total 95500 - ADS & Subs & Dues
96010 - Office Supplies
0796010 - Office Supplies - TD
1296010 - Office Supplies - 5311
Total 96010 - Office Supplies
96020 - Postage Expense
0796020 - Postage Expense - TD
1296020 - Postage Expense - 5311
Total 96020 - Postage Expense
96510 - Office Maintenance
0796510 - Office Maintenance - TD
1296510 - Office Maintenance - 5311
96511 - Past control
0796511 - Pest Control - TD
Total 96511 - Pest control
Total 96510 - Office Maintenance
96525 - Computer Expense
96520 - Computer Maintenance
0796520 - Computer Maint - TD

1296520 - Computer Maint - 5311

Total 96520 - Computer Maintenance
Total 96525 - Computer Expense
97010 - Insurance

04797010 - Insurance - TD

Aug - Oct 22

6,528.93
6,5628.94

13,057.87

13,901.65

8,286.11
22,277.66
35,335.63

96.00
156.09
252.09

l

1,050.00
1,050.00
1,302.09

974.05
959.54

1,933.59

100.00
100.00

200.00

992.82
885.00

3,914.10
3,014.10
7,828,20
7,828.20

17,425.13

Page 2 of 6



Suwannee Valley Transit Authority

Profit & Loss

August through October 2022

129701¢ - Insurance - 5311
Total 97010 - Insurance
87020 - Telephone
97021 - Office Lines
0797021 - Office Lines - TD
1297021 - Office Lines - 5311
Total 97021 - Office Lines
97022 - Cell Phones
0797022 - Cell Phones - TD
1297022 - Cell Phones - 5311
Total 97022 : Cell Phones
97023 - Internet Service
0797023 - Internet Service - TD
1297023 - Internet Service - 5311
Total 97023 - Internet Service
Total 97020 - Telephone
97060 - Utilities
97061 - Electricity
0797061 - Electricity - TD
1297061 * Electricity - 5311
Total 97061 - Electricity
97062 - Water & Sewage
0797062 - Water & Sewage - TD
1297062 - Water & Sewage - 5311
Total 97062 - Water & Sewage
Total 97060 - Utilities
97071 - Equipment Lease - Operations
Equipment Rental - 5311
0797071 - Equipment Lease - TD
Total 97071 - Equipment Lease - Operations
97072 - Lot Rental
97330 - Penalaties and Interest
0797531 - Late Fees
97530 - Penalaties and interast - Other
Total 97530 - Penalaties and Interest
97540 - Paypal Service Fee
Total Operation Expenses
Shop Expenses
90015 + Shop Wages
90024 - Shop Fringes
90022 - Shop FICA
80035 - Shop Retirement

Aug - Oct 22
17.425.12
34,850.25

1,662.31
1,662.26

3,324.57

1,383.06
1,393.08
2,786.14

1,031.10
1,031.10

A et ——

2,062.20

8,172.M

1,067.39
1,067.41
2,134.80

333.22
333.24
666.46
2,801.26

595.38
141.24

736.62
400.00

1.1¢
10.52
11.71
12.50

164,430.52

37,379.54

2,187.17

Page 3 of 6



Suwannee Valley Transit Authority

Profit & Loss

August through October 2022

0790035 - Shop Retirement - TD
1290035 - Shop Retirement - 5311
Total 90035 - Shop Retirement
80045 - Shop Group Ins
0790045 - Shop Group Ins - TD
1290045 - Shop Group Ins - 5311
Total 90045 - Shop Group Ins
90075 - Shop Medicare
Total 90024 - Shop Fringes
90060 * Uniforms
0790080 - Uniforms - TD
Total 90060 - Uniforms
90505 - Fuel
90510 - Gas Expense
0790510 - Gas Expenhse - TD
1280510 - Gas Expense - 5311
Total 90510 - Gas Expense
90520 - Diesel Expense
0790520 - Diesel Expense - TD
1290520 - Diesel Expense - 5311
Total 90520 - Diesel Expense
Total 90505 - Fuel
91010 : Tires & Tubes Expense
0791010 - Tires & Tubes Expense - TD
1291010 - Tires & Tubes Expense - 5311
Total 91010 - Tires & Tubes Expense
91020 - Parts
0791020 - Parts - TD
1291020 - Parts - 5311
Total 91020 - Parts
91530 - Lubricants
0791530 - Lubricants - TD
0791531 - Lubricants Disposal- TD
1291630 - Lubricants - 5311
1291531 - Lubricants Dispossal - 5311
Total 91530 - Lubricants
91540 - Shop Supplies
0791540 - Shop Supplies - TD
1291540 - Shop Supplies - 5311
Total 91544 - Shop Supplies
91550 - Janitorial Supplies
0791550 « Janitorial Supplies - TD

Aug - Oct 22

3,866.04
3,866.04

7,732.08

4,867.22
1,404.81
6,072.03

511.49

16,502.77

1,719.20

1,719.20

19,255.69
19,255.73

38,511.42

1,722.66
1,722.69

I —————

3,445.35

41,056.77

169.04
169.02

338.06

3,880.22
2,685.22

6,465.44

538.31
50.00
538.32
50.00

I —————

1,176.63

692.81
692.85

——————

1,385.66

314.01

Page 4 of 6



Suwannee Valley Transit Authority

Profit & Looss

August through October 2022

1291550 - Janitorial Supplies - 5311
Total 31550 - Janitorial Supplies
970470 - Equipment Rental
0797070 - Equipment Rental - TD
Total 97070 - Equipment Rental
Total Shop Expenses
Transportation
Transportation FICA
Transportation Medicare
0747043 - Drug Screening and Prehire

0797043 - Drug Screening & Prehire - TD
Total 0747043 - Drug Screening and Prehire

90000 - Transportation Wages
90005 - Transportation Fringes

90036 - Transportation Retirement

0790036 - Transportation Retirement - TD
1290036 - Transportation Retirement 5311
Total 90036 - Transportation Retirément
90046 - Transportation Group Insurance
0790048 - Transportation Group Ins - TD
1290046 - Transportation Group INS - 5311

Total 90046 - Transportation Group Insurance

Total 90005 - Transportation Fringes
80061 - Driver Uniforms
0790061 - Driver Uniforms - TD
Total 90061 - Driver Uniforms
Total Transportation
0797040 - Professional Services Gen - TD
66900 + Reconciliation Discrepancies
1520 - Repairs & Maintenance
0791520 - Repairs & Maintenance - TD
1291520 - Repairs & Maintenance - 5311
Total 91520 - Repairs & Maintenance
97040 - Professional Services
97043 - Training
073043 - Training - TD
Total 37043 - Training
Total 97040 - Professional Services
97050 - Travel
0797050 - Travel - TD
Total 97050 - Travel

97510 - Miscellaneous Expenses

Aug - Oct 22
314.03

628.04

287.00
287.00

107,839.11

5,482.62
1,256.78

2,043.68

2,043.68
97,615.10

8,665.05
8,665.07

17,330.12

13,628.18
10,086.31
23,604.49
41,024.61

228.00
228,00
147,650.79
1,775.00
2,04

765.00
765.00

1,530.00

200.00
200.00
200.00

499.48
499.48

Page 50of 6



Suwannee Valley Transit Authority

Profit & Loss

August through October 2022
Aug - Oct 22

0.00

0.00
1,417.40
482,748.61

121,193.00
121,183.00

0797511 - Miscellaneous

Total 97510 - Miscellaneous Expenses

98260 - Interest Expense

Total Expense

Net Ordinary Income
Net Income

10

Page 6 of 6



Suwannee Valley Transit Authority

Check Detail 11
August through October 2022
Type Num Date Name Paid Amount

Payroll Liability Bank Draft 08/05/22 Payroll $ (24,824.02)
Payroll Liability Bank Draft 08/05/22 Payroll Taxes $ (6,627.80)
Payroll Liability = Bank Draft 08/19/22  Payroll $ (24,953.52)
Payroll Liability Bank Draft 08/19/22 Payroll Taxes $ (6,692.61)
Payroll Liability Bank Draft 09/02/22 Payroll $ (25,850.12)
Payroll Liability Bank Draft 09/02/22  Payroll Taxes $ {6,964.88)
Payroll Liability ~Bank Draft 00/16/22  Payroll $ (26,571.38)
Payroll Liability Bank Draft 09/16/22  Payroll Taxes $ (7,090.88)
Payroll Liability Bank Draft 9/30/2022 Payroll $ (26,706.43)
Payroll Liability = Bank Draft 8/30/2022 Payroll Taxes $ (7,168.14)
Payroll Liability = Bank Draft 10/14/2022 Payrol! $ (28,785.40)
Payroll Liability Bank Draft 10/14/2022 Payroll Taxes $ (8,740.78)
Payroll Liability Bank Draft  10/28/2022 Payroll $ (25,395.02)
Payroll Liability Bank Draft 10/28/2022 Payroll Taxes $ {6,852.38)
$ (233,223.36)

Bill Pmt -Check Bank Draft 08/01/2022 First Federal Savings ~759.58
Bill Pmt -Check Debit Card 08/03/2022 Fieldprints -80.25
Bill Pmt -Check Bank Draft 08/04/2022 AFLAC -1,688.19
Bill Pmt -Check Bank Draft 08/04/2022 Guardian -659.32
Bill Pmt -Check Bank Draft 08/04/2022 Globe Life Liberty National Division -1,375.28
Bill Pmt -Check Bank Draft 08/05/2022 Florida Retirement System ~10,187.88
Bill Pmt -Check Debit Card 08/05/2022 Matthews Bus Alliance -397.62
Bilf Pmt -Check Bank Draft 08/08/2022 TransAmerica -484.50
Bill Pmt -Check Bank Draft 08/08/2022 Wix.com ~192.00
Bill Pmt -Check 20712 08/08/2022 Shred - it / Stericycle -224.10
Bill Pmt -Check 20713 08/08/2022 Clean Yard Landscape -300.00
Bill Pmt -Check 20714 08/08/2022 FL Gateway College ~-200.00
Bill Pmt -Check 20715 08/08/2022 Foxster Opco LLC -1,478.40
Bill Pmt -Check 20716 08/08/2022 G.W. Hunter, Inc. -4,933.94
Bill Pmt -Check 20717 08/08/2022 Live Oak Pest Control Inc -48.00
Bili Pmt -Check 20718 08/08/2022 Riverbend News -45.00
Bill Pmt -Check 20719 08/08/2022 TESCO -147.68
Bill Pmt -Check 20720 08/08/2022 Verizon -881.77
Bill Pmt -Check 20721 08/08/2022 Q'Reilly Automotive, Inc. -272.07
Bill Pmt -Check 20722 08/08/2022 Advance Auto Parts -641.72
Bill Pmt -Check 20723 08/08/2022 Jim Hinton Oil -10,683.23
Bill Pmt -Check 20724 08/08/2022 Live Oak Auto Parts -345.06
Bill Pmt -Check 20725 08/08/2022 Walt's Live Qak Ford -86.92
Bill Pmt -Check 20726 08/08/2022 Powell & Jones -5,000.00
Bill Pmt -Check 20727 08/08/2022 W B Howland Co Inc -10.59
Bill Pmt -Check Bank Draft 08/09/2022 Florida Power & Light -790.31

Page 1 of 4



Bill Pmt -Check
Bill Pmt -Check
Bill Pmt -Check
Bill Pmt -Check
Bill Pmt -Check
Bill Pmt -Check

Biil Pmt -Check

Bill Pmt -Check
Bill Pmt -Check
Bill Pmt -Check
Bill Pmt -Check
Bill Pmt -Check
Bill Pmt -Check
Bill Pmt ~Check
Bill Pmt -Check
Bill Pmt ~Check
Bili Pmt -Check
Bill Pmt -Check
Bill Pmt -Check
Bill Pmt -Check
Bill Pmt -Check
Bill Pmt -Check
Bill Pmt -Check
Bill Pmt ~Check
Bill Pmt -Check
Bill Pmt -Check
Bill Pmt -Check
Bill Pmt -Check
Bill Pmt -Check
Bill Pmt -Check
Bill Pmt -Check
Bill Pmt -Check
Bill Pmt -Check
Bill Pmt -Check
Bill Pmt -Check
Bill Pmt -Check
Bill Pmt -Check
Bill Pmt -Check
Bill Pmt -Check
Bill Pmt -Check
Bill Pmt -Check
Bill Pmt -Check
Bill Pmt -Check

Bank Draft
Bank Draft
Bank Draft
Dehit Card
Bank Draft
Bank Draft
20728
20729
20730
20731
20732
20733
20734
20735
20736
20737
20738
20739
20740
Bank Draft
Bank Draft
Debit Card
Debit Card
Bank Draft
Bank Draft
Bank Draft
Bank Draft
Bank Draft
Bank Draft
20741
20742
20743
20744
20745
20746
20747
20748
20749
20750
20751
20752
20753
20754

Suwannee Valley Transit Authority

Check Detail

August through October 2022
08/10/2022 Blue Cross/Blue Shield

08/10/2022 City of Live Oak

08/12/2022 ADP, LLC

08/16/2022 Dollar General

08/18/2022 Department of Management Services
08/22/2022 Blue Cross/Blue Shield
08/23/2022 Baya Urgent Care LLC
08/23/2022 Clean Yard Landscape
08/23/2022 Cochran Plumbing Services, LLC
08/23/2022 Comcast { Fax line )

08/23/2022 Comcast { Fiber Opt Internet)
08/23/2022 Comcast Business (Fiber Phones)
08/23/2022 First Federal Bank

08/23/2022 Florida Power & Light
08/23/2022 GreatAmerican Financial Svcs.
08/23/2022 McCrimon's Office Supply
08/23/2022 Staples Advantage

08/23/2022 The ARC North Florida, Inc
08/23/2022 The Bus Service Center
08/26/2022 ADP, LLC

08/26/2022 ADP, LLC

08/26/2022 DAON TRUST

08/26/2022 IdentiFIX

09/06/2022 Guardian

09/06/2022 TransAmerica

09/06/2022 Globe Life Liberty National Division
09/06/2022 Blue Cross/Blue Shield
09/06/2022 AFLAC

09/06/2022 Florida Retirement System
09/06/2022 Cintas Corporation #148
09/06/2022 Advance Auto Parts

09/06/2022 Advanced Tire Services
09/06/2022 Clean Yard Landscape
09/06/2022 Eric Musgrove

09/06/2022 Foxster Opco LLC

09/06/2022 G.W. Hunter, Inc.

09/06/2022 Innovative Network, Inc
09/06/2022 Jim Hinton 0il

09/06/2022 Live Oak Auto Parts

09/06/2022 Live Oak Pest Control In¢c
09/06/2022 O'Reilly Automaotive, Inc.
09/06/2022 Pioneer Janitorial Service
09/06/2022 Pitney Bowes Bank Purchase Power

~10,474.21
-324.22
-225.39
-14.45
-11.19
-3,650.52
=330.00
~300.00

12

-635.00 -

-93.35
-687.40
-1,026.68
-341.42
~795.53
-595.38
-182.00
-207.88
-258.98
-477.82
-99.35
-231.51
-69.75
-1,428.00
~659.32
-484.50
-1,366.59
14,124.73
-1,688.19
-9,801.24
-614.00
-177.67
-316.07
-300.00
-275.00
-1,478.40
-5,949.03
-1,131.00
-11,023.37
-338.49
-48.00
-190.12
-590.00
-100.00

Page 2 of 4



Bil! Pmt -Check
Bill Pmt -Check
Bill Pmt ~Check
Bill Pmt -Check
Bill Pmt ~Check
Bill Pmt -Check
Bili Pmt -Check
Bill Pmt -Check
Bill Pmt ~-Chack
Bill Pmt -Check
Biil Pmt ~Check
Bill Pmt -Check
Bill Pmt ~Check
Bill Pmt -Check
Bill Pmt -Check
Bifl Pmt -Check
Bill Pmt -Check
Bill Pmt -Check
Bill Pmt -Check
Bill Pmt -Check
Bill Pmt -Check
Bill Pmt -Check
Bili Pmt -Check
Bill Pmt -Check
Bill Pmt -Check
Bill Pmt ~-Check
Bill Pmt -Check
Bill Pmt -Check
Bill Pmt -Check
Bill Pmt -Check
Bill Pmt -Check
Bill Pmt -Check
Bil! Pmt -Check
Bill Pmt ~Check
Check

Bill Pmt -Check
Bill Pmt -Check
Bili Pmt -Check
Bill Pmt -Check
Bill Pmt -Check
Bill Pmt -Check
Bill Pmt -Check
Bill Pmt -Check

20755

20756

Debit Card
Bank Draft
Debit Card
Bank Draft
Debit Card

20757
20758
20759
20760
20761
20762
20763
20764
20765
20766
20767

20768

20769
20770
20771
20772
Bank Draft
Debit Card
Bank Draft
Bank Draft
Bank Draft
Bank Draft
Bank Draft
Bank Draft
Debit Card
Bank Draft
50005
20773
20774
20775
20776
20777
20778
20779
20780

Suwannee Valley Transit Authority

Check Detail

August through October 2022
09/06/2022 Seaman's Aqua Clean

09/06/2022 Verizon

09/07/2022 Amazon.Com

09/09/2022 ADP, LLC

09/12/2022 Amazon.Com

09/13/2022 City of Live Oak

09/21/2022 Amazon.Com

09/22/2022 Department of Management Services
09/22/2022 Baya Urgent Care LLC
09/22/2022 Clean Yard Landscape
09/22/2022 Comcast { Fax line )
09/22/2022 Comcast { Fiber Opt Internet)
09/22/2022 Comcast Business (Fiber Phones)
09/22/2022 FL Gateway College '
09/22/2022 Innovative Network, Inc
09/22/2022 Staples Advantage
09/22/2022 Vault Health / FS Solutions
09/22/2022 Advance Auto Parts
09/22/2022 0'Reilly Automotive, Inc.
09/22/2022 W B Howland Co Inc
09/22/2022 Fiorida Power & Light
09/22/2022 FDOT Office of Comptroller
09/22/2022 Powell & Jones

09/22/2022 First Federal Bank
09/23/2022 ADP, LLC

09/23/2022 DAON TRUST

09/26/2022 Guardian

09/26/2022 Sunpass

09/27/2022 AFLAC

09/27/2022 TransAmerica

09/27/2022 Blue Cross/Blue Shield
09/28/2022 ACHA / Background Screening
09/28/2022 DAON TRUST

09/30/2022 ADP, LLC

09/30/2022 Morrison, Jesse

10/04/2022 Cintas Corporation #148
10/04/2022 Clean Yard Landscape
10/04/2022 Fleet Pride

10/04/2022 Foxster Opco LL.C

10/04/2022 Live 0ak Auto Parts
10/04/2022 Pioneer Janitorial Service

10/04/2022 Pitney Bowes Global Financial Services
10/04/2022 Preferred Governmental Insurance Trust

-35.00
-348.10
-92.20
~234.57
-102.87
~277.81
-357.00
0.00
-330.00
-300.00
-79.14
-687.40
~1,026.68
~100.00
-1,131.00
-35.17
-702.00
-270.30
-290.17
~62.29
-714.83
~4,296.29
-5,000.00
-307.72
-237.63
-69.75
-733.26
-7.48
-1,688.19
-484.50
-15,015.88
-43.43
-69.75
-104.55
-555.80
-491.20
-300.00
«152.5(
-1,478.40
-687.79
-590.00
-141.24
-8,439.75

13

Page 3 of 4



Bill Pmt -Check
Bill Pmt -Check
Bil! Pmt -Check
Bili Pmt -Check
Bill Pmt -Check
Bill Pmt -Check
Bill Pmt -Check
Bill Pmt -Check
Bill Pmt -Check
Bill Pmt -Check
Bill Pmt -Check
Bill Pmt -Check
Bill Pmt -Check
Bill Pmt -Check
Bill Pmt -Check
Bill Pmt -Check
Bill Pmt -Check
Bill Pmt -Check
Bill Pmt -Check
Bill Pmt -Check
Bill Pmt -Check
Bill Pmt -Check
Biil Pmt -Check
Bill Pmt -Check
Bill Pmt -Check
Bill Pmt -Check
Bill Pmt -Check
Bill Pmt -Check
Bill Pmt -Check
Bill Pmt -Check
Bill Pmt ~Check
Bill Pmt -Check
Bill Pmt -Check
Bill Pmt -Check

20781
20782
20783
20784
20785
20786
20787
20788
Debit Card
Debkit Card
Debit Card
Bank Draft
Bank Draft
Bank Draft
Debit Card
Bank Draft
Debit Card
20789
20790
20791
20792
20793
20794
20795

120796

20797
20798
20799
20800
Debit Card
Debit Card
Bank Draft
Debit Card
Bank Draft

Suwannee Valley Transit Authority

Check Detail

August through October 2022
10/04/2022 Seaman's Aqua Clean

10/04/2022 Sign-A-Rama Tampa Bay Shermark Inc.
10/04/2022 Staples Advantage
10/04/2022 Suwannee No. FL Sports Connection
10/04/2022 The ARC North Florida, Inc
10/04/2022 Verizon
10/04/2022 Walthall Oil Company
10/04/2022 Walt's Live Cak Ford
10/05/2022 DAON TRUST
10/05/2022 DAON TRUST
10/05/2022 DAON TRUST
10/06/2022 Florida Retirement System
10/06/2022 Globe Life Liberty National Division
10/07/2022 ADP, LLC
10/07/2022 Walmart
10/12/2022 City of Live Oak
10/12/2022 Amazon.Com
10/12/2022 Acentria Insurance
10/12/2022 Comcast ( Fiber Opt Internet)
10/12/2022 First Federal Bank
10/12/2022 FL Gateway College
10/12/2022 Florida Department of Economic Opportu
10/12/2022 G.W. Hunter, Inc.
10/12/2022 Jim Hinton Oil
10/12/2022 Staples Advantage
10/12/2022 USA Qil, LLC
10/12/2022 Comcast Business (Fiber Phones)
10/12/2022 Florida Public Transportation Association
10/12/2022 Preferred Governmental Insurance Trust
10/17/2022 Amazon.Com
10/18/2022 DAON TRUST
10/21/2022 ADP, LLC
10/26/2022 DAON TRUST
10/28/2022 ADP, LLC
Total Checks Aug - Oct 2022

TOTAL SPENT AUG-OCT 2022 -

-35.00
-431.32
-205.34
-228.00
-167.52

-1,478.16
-1,076.63

-31.53

~69.75

-69.75

-69.75

-15,405.54
-1,366.59
-237.63
~46.88
-388.65
-15.09
-25,410.50
~687.40
-1,542.45
«100.00
-175.00
-4,826.92
-10,844.91
-372.00
~100.00
-1,019.34
~500.00
-6,209.81
-109.86
~69.75
-237.63

-69.75
-107.15

-236,806.40

'$ (470,029.76)

Page 4 of 4

14



Policy 2015-022

addition $0.50 per hour, for drive time hours, over operators that hold a lesser class

license.
6.7 Holidays
A. Normal Holidays - the following days will be observed as paid holidays:

New Year's Day January 1

Martin Luther King Birthday  Third Monday in January

Washington's Birthday Third Monday in February

Memorial Day Last Monday in May

Independence Day July 4

Labor Day First Monday in September

Columbus Day Second Monday in October

Veteran's Day November 11

Thanksgiving Day Fourth Thursday in November and following
Friday

Christmas (2 days) Christmas Eve and Christmas Day

1 floating holiday At employees’ designation with supervisor's
approval.

However, due to scheduling at the end of the calendar year, all floating holidays must be
scheduled prior to November 1 and used prior to the end of the first pay period in
December, or it will be lost.
B. Local Holidays - Holidays in the above list which are generally observed in the local
region may require some buses to be in operation on a limited schedule on those days. In
such cases, the Driver Supervisor will publish a holiday operating schedule for all drivers
involved, including substitutions as necessary. Personnel working those limited schedules
will be entitled to the holiday pay as outlined in Section 6.5 C5.

C. Unexcused Absence Before or After Holiday - An employee’s unexcused absence either
on the day immediately preceding or following a holiday will result in the forfeiture of

said employee’s right to be paid on the holiday.

6.8 Medical Program
A. Pre-employment Examination

A physical examination will be required prior to employment.

B. Medical Insurance Program
Full time employees are eligible to participate in the Agency paid health insurance plan
after they have completed the 90 day probationary period. thirty (30} calendardaysfrom
date-of hire. The insurance will take effect on the first day of the month following the
thirby{30)calendar 90 days. Full time employees are given the opportunity to participate
in the group life, hospitalization and disability insurance plans. The Authority pays various
portions of the premiums of these. The personnel clerk will provide up to date
information on these plans.

C. Job Related Injury -
1. Immediate medical attention shall be given to any employee injured while at work.
All employee injuries, however small, must be reported in writing to the immediate
supervisor or Administrator at once.
2. An employee who sustained a job connected disability compensable under the
Worker's Compensation Law shall be carried in full pay status for a period not to exceed

14
10/18/2022 10:24 AM



9.1

9.2

9.3

9.4

9.5

Policy 2015-022

C. The Administrator will obtain written statements from other employees concerned and

schedule a meeting with the employee and all other employees concerned within ten (10)
days from the date the employee’s grievance is received.

. If the employee is not satisfied with the results of the Administrative meeting he may

request, in writing, that the Board receive the case. The findings of the Board shall be
considered final except in the case of a charge in discrimination.

Section 9 — Separations From Employment

Resignation in Good Standing

To retain reemployment privilege, notice of such resignation must be given at least 14
calendar days before the effective date. However, this policy will be judged on a case-by-
case basis and final decision regarding reemployment will be made by the Administrator.

Compulsory Resignation

Any unreported absence over one day may be cause to request an employee’s resignation
under this provision. Such an absence over three work days will cause an automatic
resignation. Separation under this provision will result in loss of eligibility for
reemployment and loss of accumulated personal time off (PTO) leave, annual leave, and
other benefits.

Suspension

An involuntary separation for a limited period of time will result in disciplinary purposes.
An employee will receive a letter of explanation of notification of beginning and ending
dates of suspension without pay.

A. Period- An employee may be suspended without pay for disciplinary reasons for up to

thirty (30) days without pay. Suspension actions can be recommended by the immediate
Supervisor. They must be approved by the Administrator prior to placing an employee on
suspension.

. Reinstatement- As a condition to reinstatement from suspension, an employee may

be demoted in rank with a decrease in compensation.

Layoff

An involuntary separation not involving misconduct, inefficiency, or other delinquency.
Affected employees will be given two (2) weeks prior notice in writing. Within each
affected job class, all temporary employees shall be laid off first, then probationary
employees. Selection of permanent employees to be retained in event of layoff will follow
the same considerations as for promotions. A permanent employee selected for layoff
may transfer to a lower level position provided the employee has seniority over the
person to be displaced, meets all the requirements of the lower level position, and the
transfer is approved by the administrator. Callbacks for reemployment will follow the
reverse order (last laid off, first recalled). Employees may be eligible to apply for
displacement/dismissal allowances.

Disability

Should an employee be unable to satisfactorily perform his or her duties due to an
uncorrectable physical disability, then the employee may be separated. Such employees
shall be given every consideration for transfer to other open positions for which they
qualify. Employees separated under this provision will be given a 30 day grace period after
all leaves have been exhausted, to request leave without pay from the Board, after which
time, they will be considered to have resigned.

21
10/13/2022 8:46 AM

16



Date Adopted: November 14, 2022




CONTENTS
PR BCE ettt e e e e e s e s ea et easebeen e ene et seRe s s nean b bebebant 1
Title VI/Nandiscrimination Policy Statement and Management Commitment to Title VI Plan .....oouvee..... 4
Introduction & DescriPton OF SEIVICES ... e e e b e s s sarne s snesrrres 5
THEIE VI LIISON 1ictitieititintnientivennisnsiese e sessesies e sesss e sne s aesesbenssaasssanebsnsessess senss sanbansontanssbenssssonsossssassssnsn 5
AILErNALE TILle VI CONTACT ... oottt e s s et bs saeb s r e bans searsssesasannesbesbanaos 5
First Time Applicant REQUITEIMENTS . 1iiiieiareriiieere i icertiesrese e s e se e sas et n et besssa s bessasassssaesassassnesbesnos &
Annual Certifications and ASSUIANCES ....ciiiiire it cctree et ssr e e ena s st st e ers s b saebsenarssanans 7
THHIE VI PLaN AQOPTION 1ttt re s e et et et e bbb e b b e b b s eab s et b s st benst b2 et b s brbrsenmenssrrransseens 7
Title VI NOLICE t0 the PUBIIC. ... it st e saa e s e s e e b ne s 8
NOTICE 10 ThE PUDIC....ueiiii it et s e et e en sa et s anssrnanas 8
NOTICE POSTING LOCATIONS vt ieeieit vt st ree s rete st et e rme e e ra e sa s sar e b rar e bt st e s boesb s e sbtasnt sabessbr st menssnannes 8
Title VI Procedures and COMPIIBNCE .....cviiii e centtete e vrest v s sre b s b s b es s seesssass st s sbe st beseesee 9
COMPIAINT PrOCEOUIE .viciitiereieiitiniimiet et seereseerssseete s sessasas s sseatasses boasbensseses seebassasbebesbenssbessansssaontess 9
COMPIAINT FOMMM . ittt et e as e st ae bbb et e res b ess searssees basnas b reesansseantanse saartsas 9
Record Retention and Reporting PONCY .. nsssnestissscssess s sress s sre st nmssnsssssassses sesensoas 9
Subrecipient AssiStance and MONTTOIINE ..ot rrr s rrs v s sss s ssss e sebsbasseberees sessnsssanerss 10
Contractors and SUDCONTIACIONS .iiiiiiicincrtiree et sa s e e srabesme b s et ssberbesen e bssbe s 10
NONAISCHMINGTION ClAUSES .. ciiiiiiiti it e sbsss b st s s sa b res e sr et e s s nn e benni e 10
Disadvantaged Business Enterprise (DBE) POICY v.ociveiciriricveii s seeetiereee s s e ssre s esneaseanennne 11
Bl Iy 1ttt e et e e e e et Ras R e e s ba e s bt e sene s e aenerres 11
Title VI Investigations, Complaints, and LAWSUIES .....occiiieieeiirerriereriiesirerissssssssessss s sasssessessesesssassarssses 12
PUBlic Participation Plan.......ciiismeeii i neesirieses s seretssssieses et e st sssss s smsvasssbessssssessssentssnas s sansssnsesnses ves 13
Current QULIEaCh EFfOrS.....c.oo et e s et s e e s r e e nene s 13
I LT o S = T ol = T O PRUPR 15
Transit Planning and AdViSOry BOIES .......cviivviiieeienis et st e s ssarssanarasserssssarssasasassbans 16
TIElE V1 EQUILY ANAIYSIS 1iivieiiiintiiriirniererssriesieratsesseessiess ressassensesstsess sesessanasssenss sessssenstonas assiasesttassssvonenssstssn 17
System-Wide Service Standards and Service POlICIES .....c..ccccvrimiinmiis s resssisssrsssessiesses snresees 13
APPENAICES oottt e e e e e r et e et et s eae e et erae s rae s raes ettt et aas 19
Appendix A FTA Circular 4702.1b Reporting Requirements for Transit Providers ......occeeeeieevneeneesene 20

Appendix B Current System Description

18




tle Vi Plan

Appendix C Title VI Plan Adoption Meeting MINUEES..........cimiierinnrireniress s sienssesssssesseressessesrens 26

Appendix D Title VI Sample NOTICE 10 PUDIIC. .1 ivvviisireiisreiisisie s stiensesiessesresssrssess srasssassarsssssasssss snes 31
APPendiX E COMIAINT FOM. .ot st ses e te e s b ene e ressres e snsae st sas saser b esnssebassnnsestaens 34
Appendix F Public Participation Plan.....c. i s sienesseseesee e ses s sieses s seessssssnssssssannas 39
Appendix G LangUAage ASSISTANCE PIaM ..cvvicierioieiieeioeeretinesisne s sessssasaestesesssse ot sasarsaeensasessssenesessonees 43
Appendix H Operating Area LAnEUAEE DAl .ot ire s reesteess s ne st ab s esmnsansenesansssnens 49
Appendix | DemOEraphiC MAPS viviie ittt s resssiess s iese st ssese s eses esessesssas seassastasessasesssasssvaseerennesranens 52
AppeﬁdixJ Title VI EQUILY ANAIYSIS ....ocieieet i veretceee s cereres e et sear b es et ers ssmeorbones v nasssasessastssbersestesssanenss 56

TABLES

Table 1 | Summary of Investigations, Lawsuits, and COMPIATNTS ...vveviveeererreiinniereri s srasrssessseressseeresas 12

Table 2 | Transit Planning and AdviSOry BOAIUS .....ccvviiveerieririciiiene e snes e sssoreseesssessessassevos 16

19



20

Preface

This template has been developed by the Florida Department of Transportation (FDOT) District Tweo in
coordination with the FDOT Central Office in order to assist transit agencies with the development of their
Title V1 Plan. Although each agency is different in size, organization structure, operations, etc., minimum
Title VI compliance requirements are common to all. This template document is intended to assist
smaller transit agencies that often do not have adequate resources to develop a Title VI Plan in
accordance with the minimum requirements of Section 49 Code of Federal Regulations, Part 21 and
Federal Transit Administration (FTA) Circular 4702.1B. It should be noted that this template covers the
Title VI requirements for Subrecipient transit providers that operate less than 50 vehicles in peak service
and are located in urbanized areas (UZA) of fess than 200,000 population and rural transit providers.

While the development, adoption, and implementation of a Title V! Plan that complies, at a minimum, with
the requirements set forth by FTA Circular 4702.1B Is mandatory, the agencies have the prerogative to
either utilize this template or enhance their existing Title VI Plan with the information contained in this
document. If an agency decides to utilize this template, they will have to customize this document to fit
their agency ensuring compliance with FTA Circular 4702.1B, adopt the document, and implement and
comply with the Title VI Plan.

It is important to note that the Department is not requiring transit agencies to adopt this template. Transit
agencies must, however, adopt a Title VI Plan which addresses all of the requirements of FTA Circular
4702.1B which apply to their agency. The intent of the Department was to develop a document which
addresses the provisions of the circular and provide it to local fransit agencies as a means of helping
them reduce their administrative burden in preparing or updating their Title VI Plans. We believe this
document will be invaluable to you in this regard. In developing this document, it was understood that
some fransit agencies may elect to adopt the template document as a whole with little customization. This
decision is up to the local transit agency. It must be understood, however, that future compliance reviews
will examine your policies and observed practices fo ensure that they are consistent with the Title VI Plan
you have adopted, and also compliant with FTA Circular 4702.18.

To use this template, open the electronic file contained in the Title VI Plan Template CD in Microsoft Word
and save the file with an appropriate name {e.g., “Suwannee Valley Transit Authority Bus System Title VI
Plan.doc”). You will quickly note that the Template Document has been color coded to help you
distinguish between the actual requirements of FTA Circular 4702.1B, and optional language we have
provided that might assist you in developing your plan or elaborating on how your agency is addressing
the requirements of FTA Circular 4702.1B.

Text  Any text highlighted in yellow color should be replaced with your agency’s information.

Any text highlighted in blue color are Instructions for completion of the tempiate. Please delete all
blue highlighted text prior to completion of the Plan.

Text appearing within the blue shaded boxes is informational only and may provide instructions or
other information that will help you in customizing your Titte V1 Plan.,

Any text appearing in green color represents optional or suggested language that may assist you
in explaining or elaborating on how you are meeting the intent of the requirement.

descriptions which follow, represent the actual requirements as stated in FTA Circular 4702.1B,

Text appearing within the bordered boxes as well as the black text found within the section
or provides information directly related to the requirements.




Title VIPlan

21

Certain FTA Circular 4702.1B requirements are very prescriptive and the requirements are defined in
great detail. Under these circumstances, it would be redundant to explain the requirements twice (once in
the bordered box and then restate again within the general text that would follow). When such
circumstances occur, it will be noted within the bordered box and the general fext will be deferred to in
summarizing the requirement.

Remember, in the context of FTA Circular 4702.1B, some requirements are not always prescriptive and
detailed. Some portions of FTA Circular 4702.1B simply obligate the agency fo define or develop a policy
or procedure to explain how the agency will meet the intent of the requirement. The language the
Department has developed in the green colored text is optional or example language crafted to assist you
in these instances. You are nof required to use if. Whether you elect to use the optional green text is
entirely up to you, but please ensure that any green text utilized applies precisely to your agency.
Regardless, your policy or procedure must comply with the requirements set forth by FTA Circular
4702.1B. Also, note that this Template is geared towards satisfying the requirements of FTA Circular
4702.1B only. You may have to incorporate additional policies and procedures fo meet the requirements
of other regulatary agencies, as appropriate. You can also customize the appendices as needed to
supplement the Title VI Plan.

If you have any questions refated to this document, please feel free to cantact Ms. Doreen Joyner-
Howard, AICP; District Two Modal Development Manager at doreen.joynerhoward@dot.state. fl.us or

904-360-5650.

‘Suwannee Valley Transit Authorit




itle VIPlan

to assist the agencies

Doreen Joyner-

| Howard

B Remarks -

T Distributed to

agencies via email

"06/10/2022

Version 2 — Updated language
data tables and demographic
maps using 2020 census data.
Changed “Your Community
Transit” to “Suwannee Valley
Transit Authority”. Added
Spanish translation of Notice to
the Public and Complaint Form.
Updated Appendix C to remove
“FDOT Concurrence Letter”.
Added language to Appendix F
to include strategies to engage
hard-to-reach populations.
Changed JPA to PTGA.

Doreen. Joyner-
Howard

Distributed to
agencies via email

11/14/2022

Adopted by SVTA Board of
Directors ' :

Larry Sessions

Yal

ley Transit Authority

22




~ Title VIPlan

Title Vl/Nondiscrimination Policy Statement and Management
Commitment to Title VI Plan

49 CFR Part 21.7(a): Every application for Federal financial assistance to which this part applies shall contain,
or be accompanied by, an assurance that the program will be conducted or the facility operated in compliance

with alf requirements imposed or pursuant to [49 CFR Part 21].

Suwannee Valley Transit Authority assures the Florida Department of Transportation that no person shall
on the basis of race, color, national origin, age, disability, family, or religious status, as provided by Title
VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, the Civil Rights Restoration Act of 1987, and the Florida Civil Rights Act
of 1992 be excluded from participation in, be denied the benefits of, or be otherwise subjected to
discrimination or retaliation under any program or activity undertaken by the agency.

Suwannee Valley Transit Authority further agrees to the following responsibilities with respect to its
programs and activities:

1. Designate a Title VI Liaison that has a responsible position within the organization and access to
the recipient’s Chief Executive Officer or authorized representative.

2. Issue a policy statement signed by the Executive Director or authorized representative, which
expresses its commitment to the nondiscrimination provisions of Title V1. The policy statement
shall be circulated throughout the Recipient's organization and to the general public. Such
information shall be published where appropriate in language cther than English.

3. Insert the clauses of Section 4.5 of this plan into every contract subject to the Acts and the
Regulations.

4. Develop a complaint process and attempt to resolve complaints of discrimination against
Suwannee Valley Transit Authority.

5. Participate in training offered on the Title VI and other nondiscrimination requirements.

6. [f reviewed by FDOT or any other state or federal regulatory agency, take affirmative actions to

correct any deficiencies found within a reasonable time pericd, not to exceed ninety (90) days.

Have a process to collect racial and ethnic data on persons impacted by the agency's programs.

8. Submit the information required by FTA Circular 4702.1B to the primary recipients (refer to
Appendix A of this plan)

~

THIS ASSURANCE is given in consideration of and for the purpose of obtaining any and all federal
funds, grants, loans, contracts, properties, discounts, or other federal financial assistance under all
pregrams and activities and is binding. The person whose signature appears below is authorized to sign
this assurance on behalf of the agency.

Signature

Larry Sessions
Administrator/, Suwannee Valley Transit Authority, Date: September 21,2022

23



24

~ Title ViPlan

Introduction & Description of Services
Suwannee Valley Transit Authority submits this Title VI Plan in compliance with Title VI of the Civil Rights
Act of 1964, 49 CFR Part 21, and the guidelines of FTA Circular 4702.1B, published October 1, 2012.

Suwannee Valley Transit Authority is a Subrecipient of FTA funds and provides service in Columbia,
Hamilton & Suwannee Counties. A description of the current Suwannee Valley Transit Authority system is
included in Appendix B.

Title VI Liaison

Larry Sessions

Administrator

(386) 362-5332 ext, 6321

1807 Voyles Street, SW Live Qak, FL 32064

Alternate Title VI Contact

Teresa Fortner

Administrative Support

{386) 362-5332 ext. 6329

1907 Voyles Street, SW Live Oak, FL 32064

Suwannee Valley Transit Authority must designate a liaison for Title VI issues and complaints within the
organization. The liaison is the focal point for Title VI implementation and monitoring of activities receiving
federal financial assistance. Key responsibilities of the Title VI Liaison include:

a  Maintain knowledge of Title VI requirements.

= Attend training on Title VI and other nondiscrimination authorities when offered-by FDOT or any
other regulatory agency.

» Disseminate Title VI information to the public including in languages other than English, when
necessary.

» Develop a process to collect data related to race, gender and national origin of service area
population to ensure low income, minorities, and other underserved groups are included and not
discriminated against.

* [mplement procedures for the prompt processing of Title VI compiaints.




THitle ViRlan T

First Time Applicant Requirements

FTA Circular 4702.18, Chapter lli, Paragraph 3: Entities applying for FTA funding for the first time shall provide
information regarding their Titie Vi compliance history if they have previously received funding from another
Federal agency.

Suwannee Valley Transit Authority is not a first-time applicant for FTA/FDOT funding. The following is a
summary of Suwannee Valley Transit Authority current and pending federal and state funding.

Current and Pending FTA Funding

1. [Section 5311 Grant], [06/05/2020 — 05/31/2023], [$398, 921], [Current]
2. [Section 5311 Grant], [06/05/2020 — 05/31/2023], [$85,111], [Current]
3. [Section 5311 Grant], [06/05/2020 — 05/31/2023], [$258,807], [Current]
4. [Section 5339 Grant — Capital], [2021/2021], [$153,519], [Current]

5. [Enhanced Mobility of Seniors and Individuals with Disabilities], [07/01/2021 — 03/31/2024],
[$270,000], [Current]

6. [Section 5339 Grant — Capital], [2021/2022], [$212,592], [Pending]
7. [Section 5311 Grant — Capital], [2022/2023], [$199,736], [Pending]
9. [Section 5339 Grant — Capital], [2022/2023], [$199,736), [Pending]

Current and Pending FDOT Funding

1. [Commuter Assistance Program / Ride Share Grants], [03/17/2020 — 09/22/2022], [$60,000],
[Current]

2. [Commuter Assistance Program / Ride Share Grants], [12/01/2021 - 11/30/2023], [$50,000],
[Current]

Current and Pending Federal Funding (non-FTA)

1. [Formula Grants for Rural Areas], [06/09/2020 — 03/31/2023], [$2,380,380], [Current]
2. [Formula Grants for Rural Areas], [08/01/2022 — 08/31/2025], [$2,923,556], [Current]

Current and Pending State Funding (non-FDOT) -

1. [Florida Commission for The Transportation Disadvantaged Trip & Equipment Grant],
[07/01/2022 — 06/30/2023], [$702,246], [Current]

2, [Shirley Conroy Rural Area Capital Assistance Grant], [2022/2023), [$230,252], [Pending]

‘Suwannes Valle Tra.n_sii.=Autﬁqr.lty




" Title VIPlan

26

FTA Circular4702.18, Chapter Iil, Paragraph 2: Every application for financial assistance from FTA must be
accompanied by an assurance that the applicant will carry out the program in compliance with the Title Vi
regulations.

Duing the preious hre years, Florida Department of Transportation did complete a Title Vlcomliance
review of Suwannee Valley Transit Autharity. Suwannee Valley Transit Authority has not been found to be
in noncompliance with any civil rights requirements.

The follewing is a summary of the compliance review,

a. Date of the compliance review
September 26, 2019

b. The purpose or reason for the review
FDOT Triennial Review

€. Agency or organization that performed the review
Florida Department of Transportation

d. Summary of the finding and recommendations of the review
There were no findings from the review,

e. Report on the status of the findings and recommendations
N/A

f. Current status of the compliance review
In compliance

Annual Certifications and Assurances

In accordance with 49 CFR Section 21.7(a), every application for financial assistance from FTA must be
accompanied by an assurance that the applicant will carry out the program in compliance with Title VI
regulations. This requirement shall be fulfilled when the applicant/recipient submits its annual
certifications and assurances. Primary recipients will collect Title VI assurances from subrecipients prior
to passing through FTA funds.

Suwannee Valley Transit Authority will remain in compliance with this requirement by annual submission
of certifications and assurances as required by [FDOT] and/or [other primary recipient].

Title VI Plan Adoption

The Plan was approved and adopted by Suwannee Valley Transit Authority Board of Directors during a
meeting held on November 4, 2013. A copy of the meeting minutes is included in Appendix C of this Plan.

Any additional text for Section 2 must be inserted above this point for formatting/page numbering purposes.




leViPlan

Title VI Notice to the Public

FTA Circular 4702.18, Chapter lil, Paragraph 5: Title 49 CFR 21.9(d) requires recipients to provide information
to the public regording the recipient’s obligations under DOT's Title VI regulations and apprise members of the
public of the protections against discrimination afforded to them by Title Vi,

Notice to the Public
Recipients must notify members of the public of their rights under Title VI and include the notice and
where it is posted in the Title VI Plan. The notice must include:

» A statement that the agency operates programs without regard to race, color, and national origin

= A description of the procedures members of the public should follow in order to request additional
information on the grantee’s nondiscrimination obligations ‘

= A description of the procedure members of the public should follow in order to file a discrimination
complaint against the grantee

A sample of the notice is Included in Appendix D of this Plan. The sample notice should be translated into
other languages, as necessary.

Notice Posting Locations

The Notice to Public will be posted at many locations to apprise the public of Suwannee Valley Transit
Authority obligations under Title VI and to inform them of the protections afforded them under Title V1. At
a minimum, the notice will be posted in public areas of Suwannee Valley Transit Authority office(s)
including the reception desk and meeting rocms, and on the Suwannee Valley Transit Authority website
at www.ridesvta.com Additionally, Suwannee Valley Transit Authority will post the notice at stations,
stops, and on transit vehicles.

Any additional text for Section 3 must be inserted above this point for formatting/page numbering purposes.

27



- Title VIPlan

28

Til Vi rocedures and Compliance

FTA Circular 4702.1B, Chapter Hl, Paragraph 6: All recipients shall develop procedures for investigating and
tracking Title VI comploints filed aginst them and make their procedures for filing a complaint available to
member of the public.

Complaint Procedure

Any person who believes he or she has been discriminated against on the basis of race, color, or naticnal
origin by Suwannee Valley Transit Authority may file a Title VI complaint by completing and submitting the
agency's Title VI Complaint Form {refer to Appendix E}. Suwannee Valley Transit Authority investigates
complaints received no more than 180 days after the alleged incident. Suwannee Valley Transit Authority
will process complaints that are complete.

Once the complaint is received, Suwannee Valley Transit Authority will review it to determine if our office
has jurisdiction. The complainant will receive an acknowledgement letter informing him/her whether the
complaint will be investigated by our office.

Suwannee Valley Transit Authority has ninety (90} days to investigate the complaint. If more information
is needed to resolve the case, Suwannee Valley Transit Authority may contact the complainant. The
complainant has ten {10} business days from the date of the letter to send requested information to the
investigator assigned to the case. If the investigator is not contacted by the complainant or does not
receive the additional information within ten (10) business days, Suwannee Valley Transit Autharity can
administratively close the case. A case can also be administratively closed if the complainant no longer
wishes to pursue their case.

After the investigator reviews the complaint, she/he will issue one of two letters to the complainant: a
closure letter or a letter of finding (LOF). A closure letter summarizes the allegations and states that there
was not a Title VI violation and that the case will be closed. A LOF summarizes the allegations and the
interviews regarding the alleged incident, and explains whether any disciplinary action, additional training
of the staff member, or other action will oceur. If the complainant wishes to appeat the decision, she/he
has seven (7) days to do so from the time he/she receives the closure lefter or the LOF.

The complaint procedure will be made available to the public on Suwannee Valley Transit Authority
website {(www.ridesvta.com)

Complaint Form
A copy of the complaint form in English is provided in Appendix E and on Suwannee Valley Transit
Authority {www.ridesvta.com}.

Record Retention and Reporting Policy

FTA requires that all direct and primary recipients document their compliance by submitting a Title Vi Plan
to their FTA regional civil rights officer once every three (3) years. Suwannee Valley Transit Authority will
submit their Title VI Plan to FDOT for concurrence on an annual basis or any time a major change in the
Plan occurs.

Compliance records and all Title VI related documents will be retained for a minimum of three (3) years
and reportted to the primary recipient annually.




Title VIPlan

29

Subrecipient Assistance and Monitoring
Suwannee Valley Transit Authority does not have any subrecipients to provide monitoring and assistance.
As a Subrecipient to FDOT, Suwannee Valley Transit Authority utilizes the Subrecipient assistance and
menitoring provided by FDOT, as needed. In the future, if Suwannee Valley Transit Authority has
subrecipients, it will provide assistance and monitoring as required by FTA Circular 4702.1B.

Contractors and Subcontractors (Not Applicable)

Suwannee Valley Transit Authority is responsible for ensuring that contractors are in compliance with Title
V! requirements. Contractors may not discriminate in the selection and retention of any subcontractors.
Subcontractors also may not discriminate in the selection and retention of any subconfractors. Suwannee
Valley Transit Authority, contractors, and subcontractors may not discriminate in their employment
practices in connection with federally assisted projects. Contractors and subcontractors are not required
to prepare or submit a Title VI Plan. However, the following nondiscrimination clauses wilt be inserted into
every contract with contractors and subcontractors subject to Title Vi regulations.

Nondiscrimination Clauses
During the performance of a contract, the contractor, for itself, its assignees, and successors in interest
(hereinafter referred to as the “Contractor”) must agree to the following clauses:

1. Compliance with Regulations: The Contractor shall comply with the Regulations relative to
nondiscrimination in Federally assisted programs of the U.S. Department of Transportation from
time to time, {hereinafter referred to as the Regulations), which are herein incorporated by
reference and made a part of this Agreement.

2. Nondiscrimination: The Contractor, with regard to the work performed during the contract, shall
not discriminate on the basis of race, color, national origin, sex, age, disability, religion, or family
status in the selection and retention of subcontractors, including procurements of materials and
leases of equipment. The Contractor shall not participate either directly or indirectly in the
discrimination prohibited by section 21.5 of the Regulations, including employment practices
when the contract covers a program set forth in Appendix B of the Regulations.

3. Solicitations for Subcontractors, including Procurement of Materials and Equipment: In all
solicitations made by the Contractor, sither by competitive bidding or negotiation for work to be
performed under a subcontract, including procurement of materials or leases of equipment; each
potential subcontractor or supplier shall be notified by the Contractor of the subcontractor's
obligations under this contract and the Regulations relative to nondiscrimination on the basis of
race, color, national origin, sex, age, disability, religicn, or family status.

4. Information and Reports: The Contractor shall provide all information and reports required by
the Regulations or directives issued pursuant thereto, and shall permit access to its books,
records, accounts, other sources of information, and its facilities as may be determined by the
Florida Department of Transportation, the Federal Highway Administration, Federal Transit
Administration, Federal Aviation Administration, and/or the Federal Motor Carrier Safety
Administration to be pertinent to ascertain compliance with such Regulations, orders, and
instructions. Where any information required of a Confractor is in the exclusive possession of
another who fails or refuses to furnish this information, the Contractor shall so certify to the
Florida Department of Transportation, the Federal Highway Administration, Federal Transit
Administration, Federal Aviation Administration, and/or the Federal Motor Carrier Safety
Administration as appropriate and shall set forth what efforts it has made to obtain the
information.




30

5. Sanctions for Noncompliance: In the event of the Contractor's noncompliance with the
nondiscrimination provisions of this contract, Suwannee Valley Transit Authority shall impose
contract sanctions as appropriate, including, but not limited to:

a. withholding of payments to the Contractor under the contract until the Contractor
complies, andfor
h. cancellation, termination, or suspension of the contract, in whole or in part.

6. Incorporation of Provisions: The Confractor shall include the provisions of paragraphs 1
through 6 in every subcontract, including procurement of materials and leases of equipment,
unless exempt by the Regulations, or directives issued pursuant thereto. The Contractor shall
take such action with respect to any subcontract or procurement as the Suwannee Valley Transit
Authority, Florida Department of Transportation, the Federal Highway Administration, Federal
Transit Administration, Federal Aviation Administration, and/or the Federal Motor Carrier Safety
Administration may direct as a means of enforcing such provisions inciuding sanctions for

noncompliance.

Disadvantaged Business Enterprise (DBE) Policy

As a part of the Public Transportation Grant Agreement {PTGA) with FDOT, Suwannee Valley Transit
Authority and its contractors and subcontractors agree to ensure that Disadvantaged Business
Enterprises as defined in 49 CFR Part 26, as amended, have the opporunity to participate in the
performance of contracts. Suwannee Valley Transit Authority and its contractor and subcontractors shall
not discriminate on the basis of race, color, national origin, or sex in the performance of any contract. The
contractor shall carry out applicable requirements of 49 CFR Part 26 in the award and administration of
FDOT-assisted contracts. Failure by the contractor to carry out these requirements is a material breach of
this contract, which may result in the termination of the contract or such other remedy as the recipient

deems appropriate.

E-Verify

As a part of the PTGA with FDOT, vendors and contractors of Suwannee Valley Transit Authority shall
utilize the U.S. Department of Homeland Security's E-Verify system to verify the employment eligibility of
all new employees hired by the vendor or confracter while contracted with Suwannee Valley Transit
Authority. Additionally, vendors and contractors shall expressly require any subcontractors performing
work or providing services pursuant to work for Suwannee Valley Transit Authority shall likewise utilize
the U.S. Department of Homeland Security’s E-Verify system to verify the employment eligibility of all new
employees hired by the subcontractor while working for Suwannee Valley Transit Authority.

Any additional text for Section 4 must be inserted above this point for formatting/page numbering
purposes.




Title VI Plan

Tite I Investigations, Complaints, and Lawsuits

FTA Circular 4702,18, Chapter ill, Paragraph 7: in order to comply with the reporting requirements of 49 CFR
21.9(b), FTA requires afl recipients to prepare and maintain a list of any of the following that ailege

discrimination on the basis of race, color, or national origin: active investigations....; lawsuits, and complaints
naming the recipient.

In accordance with 48 CFR 21.9(b}, Suwannee Valley Transit Authority must record and report any
fnvestigations, complaints, or lawsuits involving allegations of discrimination. The records of these events
shall include the date the investigation, lawsuit, or complaint was filed; a summary of the allegations; the
status of the investigation, lawsuit, or complaint; and actions taken by Suwannee Valley Transit Authority
in response; and final findings related to the investigation, lawsuit, or complaint. The records for the
previous three (3) years shall be included in the Title VI Plan when it is submitted to [FDOT] and/or [other

primary recipient].

Suwannee Valley Transit Authority has had no investigations, complaints, or lawsuits involving allegations
of discrimination on the basis of race, color, or national origin over the past three (3) years. A summary of
these incidents is recorded in Table 1.

Table 1 | Summary of Investigations, Lawsuits, and Complaints

. Date (Mon . Summary : tus - - Action(s) Taken
Day, Year) - . {include basis of e o]

B ' complaint: race

- ¢olor or origin).

Investigations
1.
2.
Lawstuits
1. | March 12, 2021 Race Resolved Mediation
2.
Complaints
1.
o 2',

Any additional text for Section 5 must be inserted above this point for formatting/page numbering
purposes

 Suwannee Valley Transit Authority




32

Pub!ic Participation Plan

FTA Circular 4702.1B, Chapter lli, Paragraph 4.0.4: Every Title VI Plan shall include the following information: A
public participation plan that includes an outreach plan to engage minority and limited English proficient
populations, as well as o summary of cutreach efforts made since the last Title VI Plan submission. A
recipient’s targeted public participation plan of minority populations may be part of efforts that extend more
broadly to include constituencies that are traditionally underserved, such as people with disabilities, low-

income populations, and others.

1

The Public Participation Plan (PPP} for Suwannee Valley Transit Authority was developed to ensure that
all members of the public, including minorities and Limited English Proficient (LEP) populations, are
encouraged to participate in the decision-making process for Suwannee Valley Transit Authority, The
PPP is included as Appendix F fo this Title VI Plan.

Current Outreach Efforts

Suwannee Valley Transit Authority is required to submit a summary of public outreach efforts made over
the last three (3) years. The following is a list and short description of Suwannee Valley Transit Authority
recent, current, and planned outreached activities.

Date Outreach description Type of outreach
1/28/201% | SVTA Board Meeting Stakeholder mtg
2/20/2G19 | Regional LCB Meeting Stakeholder mtg

5/1/2019 | Regional LCB Meeting Stakeholder mtg
5/13/2019 | SVTA Board Meeting Stakeholder mtg
8/12/2019 | SVTA Beard Meeting Stakehelder mig
8/14/2019 | Regional LCB Meeting Stakehelder mtg

9/9/2019 | SVTA Board Meeting Stakehclder mtg
11/4/2019 | SVTA Board Meeting Stakeholder mtg

11/20/2019 | Regional LCB Meeting Stakeholder mtg
11/25/2018 | SVTA Board Meeting Stakeholder mtg
2/10/2020 | SVTA Board Meeting Stakeholder mtg
2/19/2020 | Regional LCB Meeting Stakeholder mtg
3/12/2020 | SVTA Board Meeting Stakeholder mtg

4/7/2020 | SVTA Board Meeting Stakeholder mtg
4/23/2020 | SVTA Board Meeting Stakeholder mtg
4/25/2020 | SVTA Board Meeting Stakeholder mtg
6/17/2020 | Regional LCB Meeting Stakeholder mtg
8/10/2020 | SVTA Board Meeting Stakeholder mtg
9/16/2020 | Regional LCB Meeting Stakeholder mtg

11/16/2020 | SVTA Board Meeting Stakeholder mtg

2/8/2021 | SVTA Board Meeting Stakeholder mtg
2/17/2021 | Regional LCB Meeting Stakeholder mtg
5/10/2021 | SVTA Board Meeting Stakeholder mtg
5/19/2021 | Regional LCB Meeting Stakeholder mtg

8/9/2021 | SVTA Board Meeting Stakeholder mtg
9/15/2021 | Regional LCB Meeting Stakeholder mtg
11/8/2021 | SVTA Board Meeting Stakeholder mtg

11/17/2021 | Regional LCB Meeting Stakeholder mtg
1/31/2022 | SVTA Board Meeting Stakeholder mtg
2/16/2022 | Regional LCB Meeting Stakehclder mtg

5/9/2022 | SVTA Board Meeting Stakeholder mtg
5/18/2022 | Regional LCB Meeting Stakeholder mtg

8/8/2022 | SVTA Roard Meeting Stakeholder mtg
9/21/2022 | Regional LCB Meeting Stakeholder mtg




33

Any additional text for Section 6 must be inserted above this peint for formatting/ page numbering
purposes.




. Title VIPlan

Language Assistance Plan

FTA Circular 4702,18, Chapter Ill, Paragroph 9: Recipients shall take reasonable steps to ensure meaningful
access to benefits, services, information, and other important portions of their programs and activities for
individugls who are limited English proficient (LEP}.

-

Suwannee Valley Transit Authority operates a transit system within Columbia, Hamilton and Suwannee
Counties. The Language Assistance Plan (LAP) has been prepared to address Suwannee Vailey Transit
Authority responsibilities as they relate to the needs of individuals with Limited English Proficiency (LEP).
Individuals, who have a limited ability to read, write, speak, or understand English are LEP. In Suwannee
Valley Transit Authority service area there are 2,912 residents or 2.4% who describe themselves as not
able to communicate in English very well {Source: US Census). Suwannee Valley Transit Authority is
federally mandated (Executive Order 13166} to take responsible steps to ensure meaningful access to
the benefits, services, information, and other important portions of its programs and activities for
individuals who are LEP. Suwannee Valley Transit Authority has utilized the U.S. Department of
Transportation (DOT) LEP Guidance Handbook and performed a four-factor analysis to develop its LAP.
The LAP is included in this Title VI Plan as Appendix G.

Refer to the Language Data Tables--Copy and Paste applicable tables for your Agency service area in
Appendix G.

Any additional text for Section 7 must be inserted above this peint for formatting/page numbering
purposes.

34




Title VIPlan-

35

rsit Planning and Advisory Bodies

FTA Circular 4702,1B, Chapter i, Paragraph 10: Recipients that have transit-related, non-elected planning
boards, advisory councils or committees, or similar committees, the membership of which is selected by the
recipient, must provide a table depicting the racial breakdown of the membership of those committees, and a
description of efforts made to encourage the participation of minorities on such committees.

The Suwannee Valley Transit Authority transit-related, advisory council consists of 4 members appointed
by the Suwannee Valley Transit Authority Administrator.

Table 2 | Transit Planning and Advisory Boards

" Bo -+ Caucasian .. Lati frica ~Asian . Native .~ Other:
|G s CoAmerican S cAmerican o
Service Area : :
Population ' . ' ' :
Title VI 1 i 2
Commitiee

[Commities 2]

[Committee 3]

Suwannse Valley Transit Authority will make efforts to encourage minority participation on the committee,

Any additional text for Section 8 must be inserted above this point for formatting/page numbering
purposes.




TitleViPlan

36

Title VI Equity Analysis

FTA Circular 4702.1B, Chapter {ll, Paragraph 4.0.8: If the recipient has constructed a facility, such as
vehicle storage, maintenance facility, operation center, etc., the recipient shall include a copy of the
Title VI equity analysis conducted during the planning stage with regard to the location of the

facility.

Title 49 CFR, Appendix C, Section (3)(iv) requires that “the location of projects requiring land acquisition
and the displacement of persons from their residences and business may not be determined on the basis
of race, color, or national origin.” For purposes of this requirement, “facilities” does not include bus
shelters, as they are considered transit amenities. It also does not include transit stations, power
substations, or any other project evaluated by the National Environmental Policy Act (NEPA) process.
Facilities included in the provision include, but are not limited to, storage facilities, maintenance facilities,
operations centers, etc. In order to comply with the regulations, Suwannee Valley Transit Authority will
ensure the following:

1. Suwannee Valley Transit Authority will complete a Title VI equity analysis for any facility during
the planning stage with regard to where a project is located or sited to ensure the location is
selected without regard to race, color, or national origin. Suwannee Valley Transit Authority will
engage in outreach to persons potentially impacted by the siting of the facility. The Title VI equity
analysis must compare the equity impacts of various siting alternatives, and the analysis must
occur before the selection of the preferred site.

2. When evaluating locations of facilities, Suwannee Valley Transit Authority will give attention to
other facilities with similar impacts in the area to determine if any cumulative adverse impacts
might result. Analysis should be done at the Census tract or block group level where appropriate
to ensure that proper perspective is given to localized impacts.

3. If Suwannee Valley Transit Authority determines that the location of the project will result in a
disparate impact on the basis of race, color, or national origin, Suwannee Valley Transit Authority
may only locate the project in that location if there is a substantial legitimate justification for
focating the project there, and where there are no alternative locations that would have a less
disparate impact on the basis of race, color, or national origin. Suwannee Valley Transit Authority
must demonstrate and document how both tests are met. Suwannee Valley Transit Authority will
consider and analyze alternatives to determine whether those alternatives would have less of a
disparate impact on the basis of race, color, or national origin, and then implement the least
discriminatory alternative.

[Suwannee Valley Transit Authority has not recently constructed any facilities, nor does it currently have
any facilities in the planning stage. Therefore, Suwannee Valley Transit Authority does not have any Title
VI Equity Analysis reports to submit with this Plan. Suwannee Valley Transit Authority will utilize the
demographic maps included in Appendix | for future Title VI analysis.]

Any additional text for Section 9 must be inserted above this point for formatting/page numbering
purposes.




37

System-Wide Service Standards and Service Policies

FTA Circular 4702,1B, Chapter ill, Paragraph 10: All fixed route transit providers shall set service standards and

policies for each specific fixed route mode of service they provide.

Suwannee Valley Transit Authority is not a fixed route servica provider.




Appendix A
Appendix B
Appendix C
Appendix D
Appendix E
Appendix F
Appendix G
Appendix H
Appendix |

Appendix J

38

Appendices

FTA Circular 4702.1b Reporting Requirements for Transit Providers

Current System Description

Title VI Plan Adoption Meeting Minutes

Title VI Sample Notice to Public

Title VI Complaint Form

Public Participation Plan

Language Assistance Plan

Operating Area Language Data: Suwannee Valley Transit Authority Service Area
Demographic Maps

Title VI Equity Analysis




o - T:tleVlP!an

39

Appendix A FTA Circular 4702.1b Reporting Requirements for Transit
Providers




0 TitleVIPlan

Every three years, on a date determined by FTA, each recipient is required fo submit the following
information to the Federal Transit Administration (FTA) as part of their Title VI Program. Subrecipients

shall submit the information below to their primary recipient {the entity from whom the Subrecipient
receives funds directly), on a scheduie to be determined by the primary recipient.

General Requirements

All recipients must submit:

O Title VI Notice to the Public, including a list of locations where the notice is posted

O Title VI Complaint Procedures {i.e., instructions to the public regarding how to file a Title VI

discrimination complaint)

Title VI Complaint Form

List of transit-related Title VI investigations, complaints, and lawsuits

Public Participation Plan, including information about outreach methods to engage minority

and limited English proficient populations {LEP), as well as a summary of outreach efforts

made since the last Title VI Program submission

8 Language Assistance Plan for providing language assistance to persons with limited English
proficiency (LEP), based on the DOT LEP Guidance

O A table depicting the membership of non-elected committees and councils, the membership
of which is selected by the recipient, broken down by race, and a description of the process
the agency uses to encourage the participation of minorities on such committees

8 Primary recipients shall include a description of how the agency monitors its subrecipients for
compliance with Title VI, and a schedule of Subrecipient Title VI Program submissions

O ATitle VI equity analysis if the recipient has constructed a facility, such as a vehicle storage
facility, maintenance facility, operation center, etc.

O A copy of board meeting minutes, resolution, or other appropriate documentation showing the
board of directors or appropriate governing entity or official(s) responsible for policy decisions
reviewed and approved the Title VI Program. For state DOTs, the appropriate governing
entity is the state’s Secretary of Transportation or equivalent. The approval must occur prior
to submission to FTA.

3 Additional information as specified in Sections IV, V, and VI, depending on whether the
recipient is a transit provider, a state, or a planning entity (see below)

Qoo

Requirements of Transit Providers N/A

All Fixed Route Transit Providers must submit:

8 All requirements set out in Section !t (General Requirements)
O Service standards :

¢ Vehicle load for each mode

o Vehicle headway for each mode

o Ontime performance for each mode

o Service availability for each mode
0 Service policies

o Transit Amenities for each mode

o Vehicle Assignment for each mode




41

Transit Providers that operate 50 or more fixed route vehicles in peak service and are located in an

Urbanized Area (UZA} of 200,000 or more people must submit:

a
a
a

Demographic and service profite maps and charts

Demographic ridership and travel patterns, collected by surveys

Results of their monitoring program and report, including evidence that the board or other
governing entity or official(s) considered, was aware of the results, and approved the analysis
A description of the public engagement process for setting the "major service change policy,”
disparate impact policy, and disproportionate burden palicy

Results of service and/or fare equity analyses conducted since the last Title VI Program
submission, including evidence that the board or other governing entity or official(s)
considered, was aware of, and approved the results of the analysis




- TitleVIPlan -

42

Appendix B Current System Description




Current System Description

1.

43

An overview of the organization including its mission, program goals, and objectives.
Suwannee Valley Transit Authority’s current and long-term focus as a transportation provider is on

maintaining the best-coordinated transportation system possible for this community. Our goal is to
create a coordinated system with the objective of providing safe, refiable, timely, and efficient
fransportation services to county residents.

Organizational structure, type of operation, number of employees, service hours, staffing plan and
safety and security plan.
Suwannee Valley Transit Authority is a non-profit. Our organization is made up of 21 full-time

employees, 8 part-time employees, and 0 volunteers. Qur Administrator is responsible for all of the
day-to-day operations of our organization and reports directly to our Board Members. Our Board is
committed to this program and has, therefore, incorporated our service within the fri-county Public
Transportation Program. Transportation services are provided in accordance with the Board's
approved Operations Manual/System Safety/Security Program and its Transportation Disadvantaged
Service Plan (TDSP). We will continue to operate at previous year (2021) service hours averaging 84
total fleet service hours per day or approximately 25,200 annual service hours (assuming 300
operating days).

Indicate if your agency is a government authority or a private non-profit agency.
Suwannee Valley Transit Authority operates as a non-profit with a CTC agreement with the

Commission of Transportation Disadvantaged. We have an executed CTC agreement dated July 1,
2021,

Who is responsible for insurance, training and management, and administration of the agency’s
transportation programs?
Suwannee Valley Transit Authority’s Administrator is responsible for training and management of our

transportation program. All safety sensitive employees are required to complete FDOT approved
safety and security training course as part of their new hire orientation. All new employees are
required to compiste behind the wheel training. The Administrator is responsible for annual renewal
of all fiability insurance for both FDOT and agency owned vehicles, as well as vehicle registration
renewal. Itis the Administrator's responsibility to administer all aspects of the transportation program
and to control access and usage of all agency vehicles.

Who provides vehicle maintenance and record keeping?

Maintenance on alt agency vehicles is provided by in-house mechanics. Suwannee Valley Transit
Authority employs only ASE certified technicians with experience in working on commercial
passenger vehicles like the type our agency uses. All maintenance is performed using the
Preventative Maintenance Plan, which conforms to the state Vehicle Maintenance Guidelines set
forth in the FDOT Preventative Maintenance Guidelines document. All vehicle files and driver files
are kept on-site at our operations base located at 1207 Voyles Streat, SW, Live Oak, FL 32064 and
are maintained by the Maintenance Supervisor. All records are maintained and retained for a
minimum of four (4) years.

Number of current transportation related employees.

Qur transportation department has a total of 29 employees that include: 9 full-time drivers, 8 part-time
drivers, 1 administrator, and 11 support staff.




itle VI Plan.

44

7. Who will drive th vhicl, nuber of drivers. CDL certifications, etc.?
Only transportation employees that have completed all of the required safety and drivers training
requirements wilt be allowed fo drive the agency vehicles.

8. A detailed description of service routes and ridership numbers.

Transportation services provided through our program are available to citizens of our service area.
We provide a wide range of trip purposes that include: medical, nutrition, shopping, social service,
training, employment, social and recreation. Currently, we use a variety of vehicles to provide
passenger services. Our fleet includes vans, modified vans, and buses. 22 of our vehicles are
equipped for wheelchair service. We pricritize grouping frips and multi-loading to the maximum
extent possible.




~ Title VIPlan

A5

Appendix C Title VI Plan Adoption Meeting Minutes




- TitleVIiPlan

GOVERNING BOARD OF DIRECTORS

OPENING:
The November 4, 2013 special called Meeting of the SVTA Board of Directors was called to order at
6:00 p.m. by Commissioner Philip Oxendine in the Conference Room of the Suwannee Valley Transit
Authority. Chairman Ronald Williams was unable to attend the meeting; therefore, Commissioner
Oxendine presided in his absence. The invocation was given by Commissioner Fleming and the flag
salute was led by Commissioner Oxendine,

PRESENT:
Commissioners: Robert Brown, Clyde Fleming, Bucky Nash, Philip Oxendine, Josh Smith, Hal A.
Airth, Board Attorney.

SVTA Agency Representatives: Gwendolyn Pra, Administrator; Bill Steele, Teresa Fortner, Sarai King,
Wayne Blevins, Ken Kaemmer, Floyd Webb, DD Raggins, Cinda Foster, Shirley Cribbs, Frederica
Johnson, Mark Holmes and Nick Furst.

Subcontractors present: Wade Greathouse, Alternative; Joanne Collins, Collins Transport; James
Daniels and Laverne Johnson, I)’s Healthcare; Brenda Littrell, Parrish,

Absent from the Meeting: Jason Bashaw was unable to attend due to a prior engagement.

VYENDOR COMPLIANCE:
Mrs. Pra began the discussion on vendor compliance by stating the Board had granted the vendors 30
days to bring their vehicles into compliance and 90 days to bring their paperwork into compliance. She
added the vendors have completed 75% to 80% of the paperwork.

Mrs. Pra encouraged the Board members to address the vendors and mechanics with any questions.
There was an in depth discussion between the Board members, vendors and mechanics regarding
compliance issues and ways to rectify the problems. The vendors explained how they were in the
process of repairs and the cost factor involved. They also need additional time to complete their repairs
in preparation for a final inspection.

Mr. Airth reminded the Board that in their September 23, 2013 Board meeting, a motion was voted on and
passed to allow 30 days, not to exceed October 31, 2013, for the vendors to bring their vehicles into safety
compliance. Of the 15 vehicles required to have inspections, 12 of those vehicles weren’t presented for
their first inspection until after October 21, 2013, Mr. Airth stated the Board has a responsibility to the
Agency and its riders and could become a liability issue.

46



itle VIPlan

Mrs. Pra explained SVTA is attempting to have all vehicles in compliance by the date

DOT will arrive for their final inspection. Bven though SVTA’s vehicles are in compliance, if the vendor’s
vehicles are not, SVTA will be cited for noncompliance. SVTA has worked diligently in preparing all
vehicles for the DOT inspection to include the vendor’s and SVTA vehicles.

Commissioner Nash made a motion to extend an additional 30 days for vendors to have their redlined
vehicles in compliance with the condition they will not use those redlined vehicles to transport riders until
they have passed inspection. Commissioner Fleming seconded and motion carried (5-0).

Commissioner Oxendine cautioned the vendors not to use a redlined or uninspected vehicle, He also
suggested the above motion be amended to include a letter the vendors will sign stating they will only
transport riders in a vehicle that has passed inspection. This action is believed to take some of the liability
off the SVTA Board in the event of an accident. Mr. Steele agreed with this amendment stating SVTA can
use vehicle VIN numbers to assign trips and it will also provide needed documentation. The motion carried
(5-0).

RESOLUTIQNS: ‘
1. FFSB Line of Credit Increase:  Discussed and approved.
2. FFSB Credit Card Application:  Discussed and approved.
3, 5310 Grant-Capital 2014/2015:  Discussed and approved.
4. 5311 Grant-Operating 2014/2015: Discussed and approved.
5. Title VI Compliance Plan 2014/2015: Mrs. Pra explained the Federal Transit Administration has

recently required all transit authorities have this policy in place. She is asking the Board’s approval
to submit the plan to DOT and give her the authority to make any minor changes, if requested, by
DOT. Mrs, Pra also informed the Board of the appointments to the Title VI Committee to review
the compliance plan, creating a policy statement and an advisory committee. There is also a
requirement to address Limited English Proficiency (LEP) for any persons who speak little, or no,
English. DOT will inform us if the submitted plan meets the federal requirements. Each rider will
be presented with Title VI information and what it represents on an individual basis. SVTA will
also keep a log of any Title VI complaints and will be brought before the Title VI Committee for
discussion and respond to the rider. Commissioner Fleming made the motion to submit the Title
VI Compliance Plan to DOT for approval and to give Mrs, Pra the make any necessary changes.
Bucky Nash seconded and motion carried (5-0).

CLOSING COMMENTS:

Commissioner Fleming: Encouraged the vendors to have their vehicles in compliance. He questioned
the vendors if they are in agreement with the Board granting an additional 30 days extension to bring
their vehicles into compliance. James Daniels (D’s), Joanne Collins (Collin’s Transport), Brenda Littrell
(Parrish) and Wade Greathouse (Alternative) were all in agreement with the extension, adding the safety
issues for their riders is very important to them as well. IHe stated he would be stopping by SVTA to
check on their progress for safety reasons and Mr. Blevins, Maintenance Supervisor, encouraged him to
do so.

Commissioner Nash’s questions and comments:

1. Agenda Placement: What is the protocol for someone requesting placement on the Agenda? Mrs.
Pra explained their request should be forwarded directly to her. SVTA sets the agenda and it is
approved by the Chairman.

2. Vice Chairman: SVTA may want to consider a yearly appointment or reappoiniment of the
Chairman and Board Members.

47



48

3. Memorandum Agreement: Concerning a previous request for the agreement between the counties
which he had not received. Mr. Steele explained the Memorandum Agreement is in the process of
being rewritten, almost complete and will be presented to the Board Members prior to the December
SVTA Board Meeting for review.

4. Board Meetings: Desire to change to monthly Board Meetings indicating the difficulty in running
an institution by the Board when meeting quarterly. Commissioner Oxendine stated he will be
unable to attend monthly meeting due to scheduling conflicts but bimonthly would be acceptable
if Board chooses.

5. HMO’s: With the HMO’s taking over the Medicaid portion of SVTA’s transportation; the Board
will need to stay informed of the changes, Mrs, Pra explained SVTA is communicating with the
companies that will be responsible for contracting the trips which will be moved from SVTA to the
Transportation Management Organization (TMO)’s. SVTA is also meeting with these companies
and completing paperwork needed to sign a contract and she indicated a smooth transition.
Commissioner Nash is concerned with the HMO revenue decrease along with need of a decrease
in SVTA expenses. He also stated the outcome may be out of SVTA’s control since the funds will
be provided by the HMO’s instead of Medicaid. Mrs. Pra assured to Board they would be informed
of the progress SVTA is making with the TMO’s, which includes approximately 10 companies,
The year-end plan is to know which, and how many, TMO’s SVTA will be signing a contract with
and that information will be present to the Board.

6. Animosity: He believes the local and regional boards have been dealt with regarding the animosity

between them and SVTA, and additionally, to delete the animosity between the vendors and SVTA

since he considers them to be as one unit for the maximum benefit of SVTA. The goal is to move
forward, learning from past mistakes, among being the lack of oversight from the SVTA Board.

He added he enjoyed everyone being open to comments and suggestions.

Commissioner Smith: Spoke of a problem between SVTA and the vendors indicating that being the
purpose of his absence from SVTA’s Board meetings. According to him, there is a need to resolve the
issues between the vendors and SVTA, to include the shop. He also states the problems are apparent at
the Board meetings as tensions begin to arise quickly. His observation is the animosity isn’t with each
other but from past issues. He expressed the desire to see the vendors in a more pleasant relationship
with the SVTA administration. He also had a concern that Wayne Blevins, Maintenance Supervisor,
should not be placed in the center of the hostility since he has a great many issues to deal with, Mr,
Blevins had positive comments in reference to the vendors since he has been working with them in
getting their vehicles into compliance.

Commissioner Oxendine: His suggestion to the Board is to hold off making a decision to change the
meetings until the Memorandum Agreement is presented. He also indicated he may not be serving on
the SVTA Board by the December, 2013 meeting due to the Suwannee Board of County Commissioner’s
upcoming election. His belief is SVTA is moving forward in the right direction. He is disappointed the
vendors didn’t comply with the Board’s 30 days extension previously set in bringing their vehicles into
compliance. His concern remains with the safety factor.

Brenda Littrell (Parrish) stated she doesn’t have a problem with SVTA but in the event an issue does
arise, she goes to Mrs. Pra to work out a solution. She also accepts responsibility for her vehicles being
redlined.

Mr. Steele stated the Board hired Mrs. Pra giving her the responsibility of running the SVTA operations
but does not allow her the authority to make those decisions. Often times, this places a state of confusion
as to what the Board expects in allowing the company o move forward. He agrees the vendors are
needed now and the future in moving forward with the HMO’s.




~ Title VI Plan

49

| Mrs. Pra informed the Board the vendors are being included in SVTA’s resources when setting up
contacts with the HMO’s. She also reminded the Board vendors have always received payment for their
services in a timely manner and will continue to do so.

ADJOURNMENT: :
Commissioner Oxendine asked for a motion to adjourn. Commissioner Nash made the motion,
Commissioner Fleming seconded and Board carried (5-0). Adjournment was at 7:40 p.m.

The next SVTA Board Meeting is scheduled for December 9, 2013 at 6:00 p.m.

Respectfully submitted,

(Mrs.) Shirley D. Cribbs,
Secretary to the Board




~ Title VI Plan

RESOLUTION

Title VI Compliance Plan - 2013/2014

THIS RESOLUTION of the Suwannee Valley Transit Authority (SVTA) acknowledges that SVTA is a recipient of
Federal, State and local government fanding primarily used for transportation of the public including the
transportation disadvantaged. Receipt of Federal and State funds requires compliance with the regulatory
requirements of Title VI of the Civil Righis Act of 1964,

Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 protects any person in. the United States from being excluded from
participatior, denied the benefit of, or being otherwise subjected to discrimination under any program or activity
receiving Federal {inancial assistance as & sub recipient from the Florida Department of Transportation (FDOT) on

the grounds of race, color, or pational origin

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE TRANSIT AUTHORITY BOARD:

L The above recitals are irae and correct, and are incorporated Jrerein ax if fully set forth in the body
of this Resolution;

2 This Resolution applies to the approval of the SYTA Title VI Compliance Plan;

3. The Title VI Committes as selected by Gwendolyn H. Pra, is anthorized to compile a Title VI
Compliance Plan for the Swwannee Valley Transit Authority;

4. WHEREAS, that Title VI Compliance Plan has been compiled and is now being subntitted to the
S¥TA Board for auproval and adoption on this fourth duy of Nevember, 2013;

5. Beit resolved ot this Title VI Compliance Plan is now Approved and Adapted by the Suwannee
Vallep Transit Authority Board;

6, Gwendolyn H, Pra and the Tite VI Advisory Committee are hereby designated and authorized on
behnlf of the Swwannee Volley Tronsit Authovity to make changes to the Title VI Compliance Plan as
needed,

The foregoing Resolution was DULY PASSED, ADOPTED AND became EFFECTIVE af a duly ealled and
canvened public meeting of the Swwannce Valley Transit Authority held ors the 4" of November, 2013,

By: @% / ) g’,{?wf/«?mj

(Original Signature, Board Chairman)

ATTEST: }M\MQD,\% R Lo

(Original Signature: Roard Secretary)

. S.uwa__n_ljg_e'fef\[a_lley'-"I'-rah"sit_ 5@.‘1th’q’;r__.§_ty_z s



51

Appendix D Title VI Sample Notice to Public




 Title VI Plan

52

Notifying the Public of Rights Under Title VI

SUWANNEE VALLEY TRANSIT AUTHORITY

= Suwannee Valley Transit Authority operates its programs and services without regard to race,
color, and national origin in accordance with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act. Any person who
believes she or he has been aggrieved by any unlawful discriminatory practice under Title VI
may file a complaint with Suwannee Valley Transit Authority.

¢ For more information on Suwannee Valley Transit Authority’s civil rights program, and the
procedures to file a complaint, contact 388 362-5332, email larry.sessions@ridesvia.com or visit
our administrative office at 1907 Voyles Street, SW Live Oak, Florida 32064. For more
information, visit www.ridesvta.com.

[f information is needed in another language, contact 386 362-5332.

Notificacién al plblico de los derechos en virtud del Titulo VI

SUWANNEE VALLEY TRANSIT AUTHORITY

Suwannee Valley Transit Authority opera sus programas y servicios sin tener en cuenta la raza,
¢l color y el origen nacional de acuerdo con el Titulo VI de la L.ey de Derechos Civiles.
Cualquier persona gque crea que ha sido agraviada por cualquier practica discriminatoria ilegal
bajo el Titulo VI puede presentar una queja ante Suwannee Valley Transit Authority.

Para obtener mas informacion sobre el programa de derechos civiles Suwannee Valley Transit
Authority’s v los procedimientos para presentar una queja, comuniguese con 386 362-5332;

envie un correo electrénico larry.sessions@ridesvia.com: o visite nuestra oficina administrativa
en 1907 Voyles Street, SW Live Oak, FL 32064. Para obtener mas informacion, visite
www.ridesta.com.

Si necesita informacion en otro idioma, pdngase en contacto con 386 362-5332




53

Appendix E Complaint Form




Title VIPlan.

54

SUWANNEE VALLEY TRANSIT AUTHORITY
Title VI Complaint Form

- Section I:
" N=an;e: )
Address:
Telephone (Home): Telephone (Work):
Electronic Mail Address:
Accessible Format Large Print Audio Tape
Requirements? TDD Other
Section II: -
Are you filing this compiaint on your own behalf? Yes® No

*f you answered "yes" to this question, go to Section I1.

If not, please supply the name and relationship of the person for whom you
are complaining:

Please explain why you have filed for a third party:

Please confirm that you have obtained the permission of the aggrieved Yes No
party if you are filing on behalf of a third party.

- Section il

| believe the discrimination | experienced was based on {check all that apply):

[1Race [1Color [ ] Naticnal Origin []1Age

[ 1 Disability [ 1Family or Religious Status [ ] Other (explain)
Date of Alleged Discrimination (Month, Day, Year):

Explain as clearly as possible what happened and why you believe you were discriminated against. Describe all
persons who were involved. Include the name and contact information of the person{s) who discriminated against you
(if known) as well as names and contact information of any witnesses. If more space is needed, please use the back
of this form,

Section IV

Have you previously filed a Title VI complaint with this agency? Yes No




- Title VIPlan
55
! Section V )
Have you filed this complaint with any other Federal, State, or local agency, or with any Federal or State court?
[1Yes [1No

If yes, check all that apply:
[] Federal Agency:
[ 1 Federal Court [ ] State Agency
[]1State Court [ ] Local Agency

Please provide information about a contact person at the agency/court where the complaint was filed.

Name:
Title:

Agency:
Address:

Telephone:

Section Vi

Name of agency complaint is against:

Contact person;
Title:

Telephone number:

You may attach any written materials or other information that you think is relevant to your complaint.

Signature and date required below

Signature Date

Please submit this form in person at the address below, or mall this form to:

Suwannee Valley Transit Authority
Larry Sessions, Administrator
1907 Voyles Street, SW

Live Oak, FL. 32064




' SUWANNEE VALLEY TRANSIT AUTHORITY

Formulario de reclamacion del Titulo VI (Spanish)

Seccion |

mebfé:

Direccion:

Teléfono (Inicio): Teléfono {Trabajo):

Direccién de correo electrdnico:

56

¢ Requisitos de formato Letra grande Cinta de audio

accesible? TDD Otro
Seccion Il: B

¢ Esta presentando esta queja en su propio nombre? si* No-

*Si respondio "si" a esta pregunta, vaya a la Seccidn |l

De lo contrario, proporcione el nombre y la relaciéon de la persona
por la que se queja:

Por favor, explique por qué ha solicitado a un tercero:

Confirme que ha obtenido el permiso de la parte agraviada si esta Si No
presentando una solicitud en nombre de un tercero.

Seccién lil:

Creo que la discriminacion que experimenté se baso en (verifique todo lo que se aplica):
[ 1 Raza[ ] Color[ ] Origen nacional [ ] Edad

[ ] Discapacidad [ ] Estado familiar o religioso [ ] Otro (explicar)

Fecha de la presunta discriminacién {mes, dia, afio):

Explique lo mas claramente posible lo que sucedié y por qué cree que fue discriminado. Describa a todas
las personas que estuvieron involucradas. incluya el nombre y la informacion de contacto de la(s)
persona(s) que fo discrimind (si se conoce), asi como los nombres y la informacion de contacto de
cualquier testigo. Si se necesita mas espacio, utilice la parte posterior de este formulario.

Seccion iV

¢ Ha presentado previamente una queja dei Titulo VI ante esta Si No
agencia?




~Title VI Plan

57

Seccion V'

¢ Ha presentado esta queja ante alguna otra agencia federal, estatal o local, o ante algun tribunal federal
o estatal?

[1Si[1No
En caso afirmativo, margue todo lo que corresponda;

[ ] Agencia Federal:

[ ] Tribunal Federal [ ] Agencia Estatal

[ 1 Tribunal Estatal [ ] Agencia l.ocal

Proparcione infermacion sobre una persona de contacte en la agencia / tribunal donde se presenté la
queja.

Nombre:

Titulo:

Agencia:

Direccién:

Teléfono:

Seccion VI

El nombre de la queja de la agencia es contra:

Persona de contacto:

Titulo:

Nimero de teléfono:

Puede adjuntar cuaiquier material escrito u otra informacién que considere relevante para su queja.

Firma y fecha requeridas a continuacion

Firma Fecha

Envie este formulario en persona a la direccion gue aparece a continuacion, o envielo por correo a:

Suwannee Valley Transit Authority
Larry Sessions, Administrator
1907 Vovyles Street, SW

Live Qak, FL. 32064




Appendix F Public Participation Plan




~ Title VI Plan’

The Public Participation Plan (PPP) is an open-ended plan whlch.s ou
capabilities of your agency. The following is a rough template for a possrble
transit agency. The plan should be modified to match the pub!tc partlmpatro
capabilities of your agency. FTA Circular 4702.1B prowdes little concrete gui
FFPP. The following are instructions from FTA Circular 4702 '!B W|th regards ot

“Recipients have wide latitude to determine how, when, and how often specn‘lc public'|
activities should take place, and which specific measures are most approprlate Recrp'
these determinations based on a demographic analysis of the populatlon(s) affected t
program and/or service under consideration, and the resources avallable "o

- “Some of those effective practices include:

a. Scheduling meeting at times and locations that are convenient and accesmble for mlnori
LEP communitles. : :

b. Employing different meeting sizes and formats.

¢. Coordinating with community and faith-based organizations, educatronal mstltutlons and, th
organizations to implement public engagement strategies that reach out speclf caily to members
of affected minority and/or LEP communities,

d. Considering radio, television, or newspaper ads on stations and in publlcatlons that serve. LEP

populations. Outreach to LEP populations could also include audio programming avallable on

podcasts.

. Providing opportunities for public participation through means other than written commumcat:on

" such as personal interviews or use of audio or video recording devices to capture oral -
¢ communication.

W:ththese instructions in mind, please add or remove items from the template as you see fit. The
“majority-of the plan is shown in green text to indicate the flexibllity in the plan.

d]_trer}a'lly,_ithe' new Infrastructure Investment and Jobs Act (IlJA) does not require any direct
changes to Title VI, it does offer opportunities for agencies to enhance their equity initiatives, such as -
hanced community engagement and outreach to hard-to-reach populations. The following list of

ies can be considered to aid agencies in enhanced outreach:

ering with churches and other community organizations that serve particular populations,
rig food banks, homeless shelters, and immigrant support organizations, is helpful for
ng W|th hard-to—reach communities. These organizations are trusted by community

d part;cularly for immigrants, speak their languages.

Spanlsh Ianguage radio and in Spanish-language newspapers were found to
Strategles for reachmg the Hispanic community in several states.
_S‘.!ndlwduals to assistance resources, includes personal festimanials,
ailability and benefits of service.

o_Iment assistance at large community events, such as fairs and
Qpportunlt_l_es {o efficiently reach large numbers of people.

59



Ra—

eVIPlan.

60

Introduction

The Public Participation Plan (PPP) for Suwannee Valley Transit Authority was developed to ensure that
all members of the public, including minorities and Limited Engiish Proficient (LEP) populations, are
encouraged to participate in the decision-making process for Suwannee Valley Transit Authority. Policy
and service delivery decisions need to take into consideration community sentiment and public opinion
based upon well-executed outreach efforts. The public oufreach strategies described in the PPP are
designed to provide the public with effective access to information about Suwannee Valley Transit
Authority services and to provide a variety of efficient and convenient methods for receiving and
considering public comment prior to implementing changes fo services. Suwannee Valley Transit
Authority also recognizes the importance of many types of stakeholders in the decision-making process,
including other units of government, community-based organizations, passengers, and the general public,
incfuding low-income, minority, LEP, and other traditionally underserved communities.

Public Participation Goals

The main goal of the PPP is to offer meaningful opportunities for all interested segments of the public,
including, but not limited to, low-income, minority and LEP groups, to comment, about Suwannee Valley
Transit Authority and its operations. The goals for this PPP include:

= Inclusion and Diversity: Suwannee Valley Transit Authority will proactively reach out and
engage low-income, minority, and LEP populations for the Suwannee Valley Transit Authority
service area so these groups wili have an opportunity to participate.

= Accessibility: All legal requirements for accessibility will be met. Efforts will be made to
enhance the accessibility of the public’s participation — physicaily, geographically, temporally,
linguistically, and culturally.

» Clarity and Relevance: Issues will be framed in public meetings in such a way that the
significance and potential effect of proposed decisions is understood by participants.
Proposed adjustments to fares or services will be described in language that is clear and
easy to understand.

* Responsive: Suwannee Valley Transit Authority will strive to respond to and incorporate,
when possible, appropriate public comments into transportation decisions.

= Tailored: Public participation methods will be tailored to match local and cultural preferences
as much as possible.

* Flexible: The public participation process will accommodate participation in a variety of ways
and will be adjusted over time as needed.

Public Participation Methods

The methods of public participation included in this. PPP were developed based upon best practices in
conjunction with the needs and capabilities of Suwannee Valley Transit Authority. Suwannee Vailey
Transit Authority intends to achieve meaningful public participation by a variety of methods with respect to
service and any changes to service.

Suwannee Valley Transit Authority will conduct community meetings and listening sessions as
appropriate with passengers, employers, community based organizations, and advisory committees to
gather public input and distribute information about service quality, proposed changes or new service

options,




- Tltle VI Pian . —

61

The public will be invited to provide feedback on the Suwannee Valley Transit Authority website
www.ridesvta.com and all feedback on the site will be recorded and passed on to Suwannee Valley
Transit Authority management. The public will also be able to call the Suwannee Valley Transit Authority
office at 386-362-5332 during its hours of operation. Feedback collected over the phone will be recorded
and passed on to Suwannee Valley Transit Authority management. Formal customer surveys to measure
performance will be conducted periodically. The comments recorded as a part of these participation
methods will be responded {o as appropriate.

For all public meetings, the venue will be a facility that is accessible for persons with disabilities and,
preferably, is served by public transit. If a series of meetings are scheduled on a topic, different meeting
locations may be used, since no one location is usually convenient to all participants.

For community meetings and other important information, Suwannee Valley Transit Authority will use a
variety of means to make riders and citizens aware, including some or all of the following methods:

= In-vehicle advertisement

s Posters or flyers in transit center

= Posting information on website

»  Press releases and briefings to media outlets

=  Communications to relevant elected officials

s Other methods required by local or state laws or agreements

All information and materials communicating proposed and actual service adjustments will be provided in
English and any other language that meets the “safe harbor” criteria.

The LCB Meetings

The North Central Florida Planning Council conducts the LCB Meetings, quarterly.




o TitleVIPlan o

62

Appendix G Language Assistance Plan




 Title VI Plan
63

. Introduction

Suwannee Valley Transit Authority operates a transit system within Columbia, Hamilton and Suwannee
Counties. The Language Assistance Plan (LAP) has been prepared to address Suwannee Valley Transit
Authority’s responsibilities as they relate to the needs of individuals with Limited English Proficiency
(LEP). Individuals, who have a limited ability to read, write, speak, or understand English are LEP. In
Suwannee Valley Transit Authority service area there are 3.7% who describe themselves as not able to
communicate in English "very well” (Source: US Census). Suwannee Valley Transit Authority is federally
mandated {Executive Order 13166) to take responsible steps to ensure meaningful access to the
benefits, services, information and other important pertions of its programs and activities for Individuals
who are LEP. Suwannee Valley Transit Authority has utilized the U.S. Department of Transportation
(USDOT) LEP Guidance Handbhook and performed a four-factor analysis to develop its LAP.

Title Vifondiserimtnation: Program .
Tile YiiNondizcriminaiion Program

Calwnbia County
Erohicircy Suwannee Counly
TRITERET Pri whn Proficiency
g

B st b oot o i 1

e w R 'k e Viisndiserimtialion Program
meﬁ s mﬁ s N s LI s R Hampton Geonty

TERRL

Suwannee Valley Transit Authority



~ Title VIPlan

64

nguage Data Tables = Copy

Reft

The U.S. Department of Transportation Handbook, titled “Implementing the Department of
Transportation's Policy Guidance Cencerning Recipients’ Respensibilities to Limited English Proficient
(LEP) Persons: A Handbock for Public Transportation Providers, {April 13, 2007)" {hereinafter
“Handbook™), states that Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, 42 U.S.C. 2000d et seq., and its
implementing regulations provide that no person in the United States shall, on the grounds of race, color,
or national origin, be excluded from participation in, be denied the benefits of, or be otherwise subjected
to discrimination under any program or activity that receives Federal financial assistance (Handbook,
page 5). The Handbook further adds that Title VI prohibits conduct that has a disproportionate effect on
LEP persons because such conduct constitutes national origin discrimination (Handbook, page 5).

Executive Order 13166 of August 16, 2000, states that recipients of Federal financial assistance must
take reasonable steps to ensure meaningful access to their programs and activities by LEP persons
{Handbook, page 6). Additionally, recipients should use the DOT L.EP Guidance to determine how best to
comply with statutory and regulatory obligations to provide meaningful access to the benefits, services,
information and other important portions of their programs and activities for individuals who are LEP
{Handbook, page 6). These provisions are included in FTA Circular 4702.1B in Faragraph 9 of Section
Il (pages |1I-6 to 111-8},

II. Four Factor Analysis

The analysis provided in this report has been developed to identify LEP population that may use
Suwannee Valley Transit Authority services and identify needs for language assistance. This analysis is
based on the "Four Factor Analysis” presented in the Implementing the Department of Transportation's
Policy Guidance Concerning Recipients’ Responsibilities to Limited English Proficient (LEP) Persons,
dated April 13, 2007, which considers the following factors:

1. The number and proportion of LEP persons in the service area who may be served or are likely to
encounter a Suwannee Valley Transit Authority program, activity or service.

2. The frequency with which LEP persons come in contact with Suwannee Valley Transit Authority
programs, activities or services.

3. The nature and importance of programs, activities or services provided by Suwannee Valley
Transit Authority to the LEP population.

4. The resources available to Suwannee Valley Transit Authority and overall costs to provide LEP
assistance:

a. Factor 1: The Number and Proportion of LEP Persons Serviced or Encountered in the
Eligible Service Population

Of the 122,660 residents in the Suwannee Valley Transit Authority service area 2,912
residents describe themselves as speaking English less than "very well.” People of Hispanic
descent are the primary LEP persons likely to utilize Suwannee Valley Transit Authority
services. For the Suwannee Valley Transit Authority service area, the American Community
Survey of the U.8. Census Bureau shows that among the area’s population 5.8% speak
English “very well.” For groups who speak English “less than very well,” 82% speak Spanish
and 8% speak Indo-European




65

lLanguage one and two are the most spoken languages within your service area for the
) largest groups of LEP persons. Complete the table in Appendix H to determine langauge
ohe and language two. Appendix H contains a table which lists the languages spoken at
home by the ability to speak English for the population within the Suwannee Valley
Transit Authority service area.

b. Factor 2: The Frequency with which LEP Individuals Come into Contact with Your
Programs, Activities, and Services

The Federal guidance for this factor recommends that agencies should assess the frequency
with which they have contact with LEP individuals from different language groups. The more
frequent the contact with a particular LEP language group, the more likely enhanced services
will be needed.

Suwannee Valley Transit Authority has assessed the frequency with which LEP indlviduals
come in contact with the transit system. The methods utilized for this assessment include
analysis of Census data, examining phone inquiries, requests for translated documenis, and
staff survey. As discussed above, Census data indicates that there is a lack of prominent LEP
groups. Phone inquiries and staff survey feedback indicated that Suwannee Valley Transit
Authority dispatchers and drivers interact infrequently with LEP persons. The majority of
these interactions have occurred with LEP persons who mainly spoke Spanish. Over the
past 3 years, Suwannee Valley Transit Authority has had 0 requests for transiated
documents.

c¢. Factor 3: The Nature and Importance of the Program, Activity, or Service Provided by
the Recipient to People's Lives

Public transportation and regional transportation planning is vital to many people’s lives,
According to the Department of Transportation’'s Policy Guidance Concerning Recipient’s
Responsibilites to LEP Persons, providing public transportation access to LEP persons is
crucial. A LEP persen's inability to utilize public fransportation effectively, may adversely
affect his or her ability to access health care, education, or employment.

d. Factor 4: The Resources Available to the Recipient and Costs

. Langquage Assistance Plan

In developing a Language Assistance Plan, FTA guidance recommends the analysis of the following five
elements:

Identifying LEP individuals who need language assistance
Providing language assistance measures

Training staff

Providing notice to LEP persons

Monitoring and updating the plan

Sl

The five elements are addressed below:

a. Element 1: Identifying LEP Individuals Who Need |anguage Assistance

Federal guidance provides that there should be an assessment of the number or proportion
of LEP individuals eligible to be serviced or encountered and the frequency of encounters
pursuant to the first two factors in the four-factor analysis.




66

Suwannee Valley Transit Authority has identified the number and proportion of LEP
individuals within its service area using United States Census data (see Appendix H). As
presented earlier, 91% of the service area population speaks English only. The largest non-
English spoken language in the service area is Spanish. Of those who primary spoken
language is Spanish 82% identify themselves as speaking less than “very well.” Those
residents whoese primary language is not English or Spanish as speaking English less than
“very well" account for 8% of the service area population.

Element 2: Language Assistance Measures

Federal Guidance suggests that an effective LAP should include information about the ways
in which language assistance will be provided. This refers to listing the different language
services an agency provides and how staff can access this information.

For this task Federal Guidance recommends that transit agencies consider developing
strategies that train staff as to how to effectively deal with LEP individuals when they either
call agency centers or otherwise interact with the agency.

Element 3: Training Staff

Federal guidance states staff members of an agency should know their obligations to provide
meaningful access to information and services for LEP persons and that all employees in
public contact pasitions should be properly trained.

Suggestions for implementing Element 3 of the Language Assistance Plan, invalve: {1)
identifying agency staff likely to come into contact with LEF individuals; (2) identifying existing
staff training opportunities; {3) providing regutar re-training for staff dealing with LEP
individual needs; and (4} designing and implementing LEP training for agency staff.

in the case of Suwannee Valley Transit Authority, the most important staff training is for
Customer Service Representatives and transit drivers

Elerment 4: Providing Note to LEP Persons

Suwannee Valley Transit Authority will make Title VI information available in English and
Spanish on the Agency’s website. Key documents are written in English and Spanish.
Notices are also posted in Suwannee Valley Transit Autherity office lobby and on buses.

Element 5: Monitoring and Updating the Plan

The plan will be reviewed and updated on an ongoing basis. Updates will consider the
following:

The number of documented LEP perscn contacts encountered annually

How the needs of LEP persons have been addressed

Determination of the current LEP population in the service area

Determination as to whether the need for translation services has changed
Determine whether Suwannee Valley Transit Authority's financial resources are
sufficient to fund language assistance resources needed

Suwannee Valley Transit Authority understands the value that its service plays in the lives of
individuals who rely on this service, and the importance of any measures undertaken to make
the use of system easier. Suwannee Valley Transit Authority is open to suggestions from all
sources, including customers, Suwannee Valley Transit Authority staff, other transportation




agencies with similar experiences with LEP communities, and the general public, regarding
additional methods to improve their accessibility to LEP communities.

IV. Safe Harbor Provision

DOT has adopted the Department of Justice's Safe Harbor Provision, which outlines circumstances that
can provide a “safe harbor” for recipients regarding translation of written materials for LEP population.
The Safe Harbor Provision stipulates that, if a recipient provides written translation of vital documents for
each eligible LEP language group that constitutes five percent (5%) or 1,000 persons, whichever is less,
of the total population of persons eligible to be served or likely to be affected or encountered, then such
action will be considered strong evidence of compliance with the recipient’s written translation obligations.
Translation of non-vital documents, if needed, can be provided orally. If there are fewer than 50 persons
in a language group that reaches the five percent (5%} trigger, the recipient is not required to translate
vital written materials but should provide written notice in the primary language of the LEP language
group of the right to receive competent oral interpretation of those written materials, free of cost.

Suwannee Valley Transit Authority service does not have LEP populations which qualify for the Safe
Harbor Provision. [As shown in Appendix H, Suwannee Valley Transit Authority does not have LEP
groups which speak English less than “very well” which exceed either 5.0% or 1,000 person.] or [As
shown in Appendix H, XXXXX speakers qualify for the Safe Harbor Provision as the number of person
which speak English less than "very well” is counted as XX.X% and X, XXX persons.]

Using the Langauge data tables provided for your service area, review the total number and percentage
for the Speak English less than “Very Well” category for each language. Any language which exceeds
1,000 people or 5% of the service area population, must be listed above as qualifying for the Safe Harbor
Provision.

NIA

67



o TitteVIPlan

68

Appendix H Operating Area Language Data:

Suwannee Valley Transit Authority Service Area




- TitleVIPlan

Limited English Proficiency Table 2020 Census

Columbia County,
FL

Hamilkon County,
FL

Suwannee County,
FL

Label Estimate Estimate Estimate
Total: 66,680 13,778 42,205
Native: 64,101 13,116 40,066
Speak only English 61,146 12,146 38,006
Speak Spanish; 2,203 676 1,410
Speak English "very well" | 1,891 547 1,316
Spealk English "well" 201 114 75
Speak English "not well" | 60 15 19
Speak English "not at all” | 51 0 0
Speak other Indo-European
languages: 621 200 617
Speak English "very well" | 597 168 593
Speak English "well" 24 0 24
Speak English "not well" | 0 32 0
Speak English "notat ali" | O 0 0
Speak Asian and Pacific
Island languages: 78 19 23
Speak English "very well" | 51 19 23
Speak English "well" 27 0 0
Speak English "not well" | 0 0 0
Speak English "not atall” | O 0 0
Speak other languages: 53 75 10
Speal English "very well" | 53 75 10
Speak English "well" 0 0 0
Speak English "not well" | 0 0 0
Speak English "not atall" ; 0 0 0
Foreign born: 2,579 662 2,139
Speal only English 797 77 4438
Speak Spanish: 1,059 306 1,492
Speak English "very weil" | 494 19 493
Speak English "well" 240 116 282
Speak English "not well" | 271 101 444
Speak English "not at all" | 54 70 273
Speak other Indo-European
languages: 346 252 66
Speak English "very well" ;| 271 180 44

69




. Title VI Plan

Speak English "weil"

38

22 22
Speak English "not well" | 37 50 0
Speak English "not at all" | 0 0 0
Speak Asian and Pacific
Island languages: 363 27 133
Speak English "very well" | 169 0 118
Speak English "well" 184 22 15
Speak English "not well" | 10 0 0
Speak English "notat all" | 0 5 0
Speak other languages: 14 0 0
Speak English "very well" | 0 0 0
Speak English "well" 14 0 0
Speak English "not well" | O 0 0
Spealc English "not at all" | O 0 0

70



RSP S 71

Appendix | Demographic Maps




Title VIPlan

72

tnclude the demographic maps applicable to your Agency’s service area- 8 maps per county in your
service area

- e § [ # (L5 1 HRE ¥ Rak
O um Ia GEORGIA
§
oun .
b
Existing Land Ute Map 2010 b -
»
o]
©
w
#
E
nsetMap + 5
+ LR = -
wh
-3 -
- S
=
-
-
» 4
[
&
F =+
2
o
4
-
)
W
x
" +e
<
g i
B 4
L]
-
e
2
whe
isrsge 1w b
s
*
FLETING LAND LEE BAS CLASSINCANIONS .
BRR cvirarsen,
55 FRIST e @,
£ spteatson - oa tmetumae 4
) nosaren &
fresd RV "
%m 2
St
Eocd Behtantst-Eoi 14 3 fer pim
froeef Samisntor adionte {5 B0 por WIS AL 26 S0 b
E 3 fscierctes - sttfn 0 £ 4 dodatso B0 20 0 e
EE5T SsSB4 8. 000 donni B2 L5 3B 4TS [+3
B seosest LN 2
| P 3 Qs\'
SFHER HAP FEATURES
%M&m«aw
Ses
e £0 g Hee s -
T s e v
e Bgss Regtent
Rk R AR U mw“'! ¥

~Suwannee Valley Transit Authority



13

e ; ' o + o n - ' s ' wa +
GRORGIA

Hamilton'
County

Officiat Zoning Atlay

arangi

e




[ o

#ik

LS
uwannccoe
B Y

Lo

S
County

tle VI Plan

TED surmssr, e e SRRt
L3 o s

LM ascame ag o

TR seversn




 TifleViPlan

75

Appendix J Title VI Equity Analysis




. TitleVIPlan =

76

Suwannee Valley Transit Authority has not performed Title VI Equity Analysis.




Doreen Joyner-Howard, AICP

Modal Development Manager

Florida Department of Transportation, District Two
Phone: (904) 360-5650

Email: doreen.joynerhoward@dot.state.fl.us




SUWANNEE VALLEY TRANSIT AUTHORITY
1907 VOYLES STREET
LIVE OAK, FL 32064
(386) 362-5332

SECTION 5310 GRANT

RESOLUTION #: 2022-04

A RESOLUTION of the Suwannee Valley Transit Authority authorizing the signing and submission of
a grant application and supporting documents and assurances to the Florida Department of Transportation,
the acceptance of a grant award from the Florida Department of Transportation, and the purchase of

vehicles and/or equipment and/or expenditure of grant funds pursuant to a grant award.

WHEREAS, Suwannee Valley Transit Authorify has the authority to apply for and accept grants and
make purchases and/or expend funds pursuant to grant awards made by the Florida Department of
Transportation as authorized by Chapter 341, Florida Statutes and/or by the Federal Transit

Administration Act of 1964, as amended;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE Suwannee Valley Transit Authority, FLORIDA:

This resolution applies to the Federal Program under U.S.C. Section 5310.

The submission of a grant application(s), supporting documents, and assurances to the Florida
Department of Transportation is approved.

Larry Sessions, Administrator, is authorized to sign the application, accept a grant award, purchase
vehicles/equipment, and/or expend grant funds pursuant to a grant award unless specifically rescinded.

DULY PASSED AND ADOPTED THIS 14" day of November 2022

By:

Signature, Chairperson of the Board

Don Hale, Chairperson
Typed Name and Title

ATTEST:

(Stamp corporate seal here :)

(Original Signature, Clerk/Secretary)
Eric Musgrove, Secretary

78



SUWANNEE VALLEY TRANSIT AUTHORITY
1907 VOYLES STREET
LIVE OAK, FL 32064
(386) 362-5332

79

SECTION 5311 GRANT

RESOLUTION #: 2022-05

A RESOLUTION of the Suwannee Valley Transit Authority authorizing the signing and submission of
a grant application and supporting documents and assurances to the Florida Department of Transportation,

the acceptance of a grant award from the Florida Department of Transportation, and the purchase of
vehicles and/or equipment and/or expenditure of grant funds pursuant to a grant award.

WHEREAS, Suwannee Valley Transit Authority has the authority to apply for and accept grants and
make purchases and/or expend funds pursuant to grant awards made by the Florida Department of

Transportation as authorized by Chapter 341, Florida Statutes and/or by the Federal Transit
Administration Act of 1964, as amended;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE Suwannee Valley Transit Authority, FLORIDA:

This resolution applies to the Federal Program under U.S.C. Section 5311.

The submission of a grant application(s), supporting documents, and assurances to the Florida
Department of Transportation is approved.

Larry Sessions, Administrator, is authorized to sign the application, accept a grant award, purchase

vehicles/equipment and/or expend grant funds pursuant to a grant award, unless specifically rescinded.

DULY PASSED AND ADOPTED THIS 14th day of November, 2022

By:

Signature, Chairperson of the Board

Don Hale, Chairperson
Typed Name and Title

ATTEST:

(Stamp corporate seal here :)

(Original Signature, Clerk/Secretary)
Eric Musgrove, Secretary




SUWANNEE VALLEY TRANSIT AUTHORITY
1907 VOYLES STREET
LIVE OAK, FL 32064
(386) 362-5332

80

SECTION 5339 GRANT

RESOLUTION #: 2022-06

A RESOLUTION of the Suwannee Valley Transit Authority authorizing the signing and submission of
a grant application and supporting documents and assurances to the Florida Department of Transportation,

the acceptance of a grant award from the Florida Department of Transportation, and the purchase of
vehicles and/or equipment and/or expenditure of grant funds pursuant to a grant award.

WHEREAS, Suwannee Valley Transit Authority has the authority to apply for and accept grants and
make purchases and/or expend funds pursuant to grant awards made by the Florida Department of
Transportation as authorized by Chapter 341, Florida Statutes and/or by the Federal Transit
Administration Act of 1964, as amended;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY Suwannee Valley Transit Authority FLORIDA:

This resolution applies to Federal Program(s) under U.S.C. Section(s) 5339.

The submission of a grant application(s), supporting documents, and assurances to the Florida
Department of Transportation is approved.

Larry Sessions, Administrator, is authorized to sign the application, accept a grant award, purchase

vehicles/equipment and/or expend grant funds pursuant to a grant award, unless specifically rescinded.

DULY PASSED AND ADOPTED THIS 14" day of Novenber 2022

By:

Signature, Chairperson of the Board

Don Hale, Chairperson
Typed Name and Title

ATTEST:

(Stamp corporate seal here :)

(Original Signature, Clerk/Secretary)
Eric Musgrove, Secretary




SVTA Meeting Schedule 2023 Calendar 31

January February March
_tSu[Mo|Tu|We|[Th|Fr|Sa| [Su|[Mo|Tu|we|Th]|Fr][sa| [Su|Mo|Tulwe[Th|Fr[sa
' 3145 6|7| | 112314l |+ 11234
10|11]12|13[14] [ 5|6 |7 |8 9 [10|11 5/6,7|8|9|10(11

1516 (1718|1920 |21 1213 (1415|1617 | 18 12|13|14|15|16 17|18
122123 24|25|26|27 |28 1920|2122 (23|24 |25 19 (20|21 (22|23 (24|25

29|30 31 .26 27| 28 26|27 (2829|3031

- April . May - June

'Su|Mo | Tu|We| Th| Fr |Sa Su'|Mo | Tu|We|Th| Fr | Sa 'Su’|Mo | Tu |We| Th | Fr | Sa_
1 1234|5686 1123
2 5|6|7|8 7.0 8|9 |10/11]|12|13| |45 |6 7|8!9]10

9 |4 121314 |15 14 15|16| 17|18 |19 | 20 1112 (131415 16|17
116 |17 181920 |21 |22 21[22123 24|25|26 |27 18119 20| 21|22 23] 24
23|24 (25|26|27 |28 29 28|20 30, 31 25|26 | 27 |28 |29 |30
July August September
'Su|Mo | Tu|We|Th| Fr | Sa 'Su|Mo| Tu|We| Th| Fr | Sa "Su|Mo| Tu|We| Th | Fr | Sa
E 1 112!3]4]|5 SE 1] 2
6|78 6.7 (8|9 10]11]|12 3145|6789
1314 15 ‘1314 |15!16 |17 18|19 10 (11 (12 (13 {14 15|16
20|21 22 202122 23|24|25|26 171181912021 |22!23
27 28|29 27282930 31 '24125(26 27|28 2930
October November December
'Su|Mo|Tu|We Th|Fr|Sa  |Su|Mo|Tu|We|Th|Fr|Sa] |Su|Mo Tu|We|Th]|Fr]|sa
123|456 |7| . 1234 |- 1] 2
: 10(11(12]|13/14| [5|6 |7 |8 9 |10|11] [3|a|5|6|7]8]09
1 9| 17|18 |19 20| 21 1213 14| 15|16 |17 18 1011121314 [15| 16
122|23|24|25|26|27|28 11920121, 22|23|24|25 17118 (19|20 (21|22 |23
20 | 30 | 31 26727 (282930 24|25 |26 |27 (282930

Federal Holidays 2023

Jan 1 New Year's Day Jun19  Juneteenth Nov 11 Veterans Day
Jan 2 New Year's Day (ohserved) Jul 4 Independence Day Nov 23  Thanksgiving Day
an 16  Martin Luther King Day Sep 4 Labor Day Dec25 Christmas Day

-“eb 20  Presidents' Day Oct 9 Columbus Day
lt\/lay 29  Memorial Day Nov 10  Veterans Day (observed)




